# Rosemount<sup>™</sup> TankMaster<sup>™</sup> WinSetup Configuration Software

for tank gauging systems





ROSEMOUNT

### TankMaster WinSetup

# NOTICE

Read this manual before working with the product. For personal and system safety, and for optimum product performance, make sure you thoroughly understand the contents before installing, using, or maintaining this product.

For equipment service or support needs, contact your local Emerson representative.

#### Version

This manual is based on the functionality of TankMaster version 6.G1.

For older TankMaster versions all functionality described in this manual may not be available and the Graphical User Interface (GUI) may look different.

#### Safety messages

# **A** WARNING

### **Physical access**

Unauthorized personnel may potentially cause significant damage to and/or misconfiguration of end users' equipment. This could be intentional or unintentional and needs to be protected against.

Physical security is an important part of any security program and fundamental in protecting your system. Restrict physical access by unauthorized personnel to protect end users' assets. This is true for all systems used within the facility.

# Contents

	TankMaster WinSetup Front Cover	0
Chapter 1	Introduction	5
-	1.1 What is Rosemount TankMaster <sup>™</sup> ?	5
	1.2 TankMaster software package	6
	1.3 Manual overview	
	1.4 Technical documentation	9
	1.5 System and user documentation structure	
Chapter 2	The WinSetup main window	
	2.1 Menus	
	2.2 Toolbar	16
	2.3 Status bar	
	2.4 Workspace - viewing tanks and devices	
	2.5 User management	
	2.6 New connection	
Chapter 3	Basic functions	
	3.1 Communication protocol setup	
	3.2 Preferences	
	3.3 Device installation	
	3.4 Tank installation	
	3.5 Level gauge calibration	57
	3.6 Tank capacity	58
	3.7 Tank Entry	59
Chapter 4	Device handling	61
	4.1 To change device configuration	61
	4.2 To uninstall a device	63
Chapter 5	Service functions	67
	5.1 Safety messages	67
	5.2 System status	68
	5.3 Customizing the Tools menu in WinSetup	
	5.4 Viewing input and holding registers	71
	5.5 To edit holding registers	73
	5.6 Viewing diagnostic registers	75
	5.7 Logging measurement data	
	5.8 Saving and loading database registers	
	5.9 Upgrading device firmware	
	5.10 Tank Scan	
	5.11 Viewing tank data	97
	5.12 Viewing alarm status	
	5.13 Protocol handling	
	5.14 TankMaster Administrator	

# 1 Introduction

Rosemount TankMaster WinSetup is the recommended tool for setting up a Rosemount Tank Gauging system.

This manual describes the basic functions of the WinSetup configuration software, how to set up tank capacity tables (TCT), product parameters for inventory calculations, and various service functions. The manual includes a brief description of the recommended setup procedure for a Rosemount Tank Gauging system.

### **Related information**

The WinSetup main window

# **1.1** What is Rosemount TankMaster<sup>™</sup>?

The TankMaster software suite provides you with the tools that you need to configure and operate the Rosemount Tank Gauging system. The Rosemount Tank Gauging product portfolio includes a wide range of components for small and large customized tank gauging systems. The system includes various field devices, such as radar level gauges, temperature transmitters, and pressure transmitters for complete inventory control. For detailed descriptions of how to setup various devices refer to the respective reference manuals.

TankMaster is an Emerson inventory management software package for installation and configuration of level gauging equipment. It is a complete custody transfer and inventory software package that provides operator overview for Rosemount Tank Gauging systems. All calculations are based on current API and ISO standards.

TankMaster provides you with powerful and easy-to-use tools for installation and configuration of level gauging devices such as radar transmitter gauges (RTGs). The settings for protocols, devices and tanks can be changed in real time.

The graphical interface gives you a clear overview of installed devices and tanks. For each tank you can easily see the associated transmitters in the WinSetup application.

# 1.1.1 Key features

- Monitoring of measured data
- Clear overview of installed tanks and devices (using WinSetup)
- Simple installation using wizards (using WinSetup)
- Open connectivity
- Object-oriented, user-friendly Graphical User Interface (GUI)

TankMaster is designed to be used in a Microsoft<sup>®</sup> Windows environment, providing easy access to measurement data from any PC in your network. Measurements and data are presented in realtime and you can customize views to suit your needs.

Rosemount TankMaster lets you connect via the Ethernet TCP/IP interface. You may also use TRL2, RS232, or RS485 interfaces if needed. Other communication interfaces, such as Enraf BPM, are also supported. Rosemount TankMaster is based on the open OPC standard, allowing you to import data into other systems such as DCS:s, PLC:s, Scada systems and Microsoft Office programs.

# 1.2 TankMaster software package

The TankMaster software package comprises the following software modules:

- WinOpi
- WinSetup
- WinView
- Batch server
- Tank server
- Master Protocol servers
- Slave Protocol servers

### Figure 1-1: Software Modules



### WinOpi

WinOpi is the operator interface to the tank gauging system. It communicates with the Tank Server and various protocol servers to let the user monitor measured tank data. WinOpi also provides:

- alarm handling
- automatic report distribution
- historical data sampling
- inventory calculations for volume, observed density and other parameters.

### WinSetup

The WinSetup program is a graphical user interface (GUI) for installation, configuration and maintenance of level gauging devices.

### WinView

WinView is a software package with basic inventory capabilities. It communicates with the Tank Server and the different protocol servers to let the user monitor measured tank data.

### **Tank server**

The Tank Server communicates with devices via the Master Protocol Server and handles configuration data for all installed tanks and devices. Parameters stored by the Tank Server include:

- device names
- configuration data, such as antenna type
- number of connected temperature sensors
- number of connected analog inputs

The Tank Server collects data from connected devices and distributes this information to the TankMaster and WinSetup user interface.

### Master protocol server

The **Master Protocol Server** transfers configuration data and measured data between the Tank Server and connected devices in the tank gauging system. The Master Protocol Server is able to communicate with various types of devices such as FCUs, the Rosemount 2410 Tank Hub, and the Rosemount 5900S Radar Level Gauge to collect measurements for, for example, level, temperature and pressure.

#### **Slave protocol**

The **Slave Protocol Server** is used to connect the TankMaster system to a host computer (DCS system). The Slave Protocol Server exchanges tank data between the Tank Server and the host computer.

#### **OPC Server with browser**

TankMaster uses **OPC Data Access 2.0** (OLE for Process Control), an open industry standard, which eliminates the need for costly customized software integration.

With the **OPC** server and the browser it is easy to import all custody transfer and inventory data to other OPC clients such as different DCS:s, PLC:s, Scada systems, or Microsoft<sup>®</sup> Office programs.

See the web site for the OPC Foundation for more information: www.opcfoundation.org.

#### **Customized views**

You can customize specific views and windows in TankMaster. Existing objects can be modified, or you can build new ones. You could, for example, create a window with an embedded image of your own plant, to give a realistic overview, and configure the window so that when you click on a specific tank in the image you can access the corresponding data for that tank.

# 1.3 Manual overview

The Rosemount TankMaster WinSetup Reference Manual includes the following sections:

Chapter Introduction provides a description of the various components in the Rosemount Tank Gauging system and an introduction to the TankMaster software package.

Chapter The WinSetup main window provides an introduction to the basic features of the WinSetup configuration program. It describes the workspace, menus, and various toolbars.

Chapter Basic functions provides a brief description of basic functions supported by the Rosemount TankMaster WinSetup configuration tool for setting up a Rosemount Tank Gauging system.

Chapter Device handling describes basic functions for changing device configuration and uninstalling devices.

Chapter Service functions includes a description of various functions supported by TankMaster WinSetup for service and maintenance of field devices.

# 1.4 Technical documentation

The Rosemount Tank Gauging System includes a wide portfolio of user documentation. For a complete list, see product pages on Emerson.com/Rosemount.

### **Reference manuals**

- Rosemount Tank Gauging System Configuration Manual (00809-0300-5100)
- Rosemount 2460 System Hub (00809-0100-2460)
- Rosemount 2410 Tank Hub (00809-0100-2410)
- Rosemount 5900S Radar Level Gauge (00809-0100-5900)
- Rosemount 5900C Radar Level Gauge (00809-0100-5901)
- Rosemount 2240S Multi-Input Temperature Transmitter (00809-0100-2240)
- Rosemount 2230 Graphical Field Display (00809-0100-2230)
- Rosemount 5300 Guided Wave Radar (00809-0100-4530)
- Rosemount 5408 Radar Level Transmitter (00809-0300-4408)
- Rosemount 3308 Series Wireless Guided Wave Radar (00809-0100-4308)
- Rosemount Tank Gauging Wireless System (00809-0100-5200)
- Rosemount TankMaster Software Installation Manual (00809-0400-5110)
- Rosemount TankMaster WinOpi (00809-0200-5110)
- Rosemount TankMaster WinSetup (00809-0100-5110)
- Rosemount TankMaster WinView (00809-0300-5110)
- Rosemount 5900 Proof Test with Reference Reflector (00809-0200-5900)
- Rosemount TankMaster Floating Roof Monitoring (00809-0500-5100)
- Rosemount TankMaster Full containment tanks (00809-0500-5110)
- Rosemount 5900 Radar Level Gauge and Rosemount 2410 Tank Hub Safety Manual Option S (00809-0400-5100)
- Rosemount 5900 Radar Level Gauge and Rosemount 2410 Tank Hub Safety Manual SIL3 (00809-0200-5100)
- Rosemount TankMaster Mobile User Guide (00809-0100-5120)
- Rosemount TankMaster Mobile Installation Manual (00809-0200-5120)

# **Product data sheets**

- Rosemount Tank Gauging System (00813-0100-5100)
- Rosemount TankMaster Inventory Management Software (00813-0100-5110)
- Rosemount TankMaster Mobile Inventory Management Software (00813-0100-5120)
- Rosemount 2460 System Hub (00813-0100-2460)
- Rosemount 2410 Tank Hub (00813-0100-2410)
- Rosemount 5900S Radar Level Gauge (00813-0100-5900)
- Rosemount 5900C Radar Level Gauge (00813-0100-5901)
- Rosemount 2240S Multi-input Temperature Transmitter (00813-0100-2240)
- Rosemount 565/566/765/614 Temperature and Water Level Sensors (00813-0100-5565)
- Rosemount 2230 Graphical Field Display (00813-0100-2230)
- Rosemount 5300 Level Transmitter (00813-0100-4530)
- Rosemount 5408 Level Transmitter (00813-0100-4408)

# **1.5** System and user documentation structure



# Figure 1-2: Rosemount Tank Gauging System and User Documentation Structure

2

# The WinSetup main window

The TankMaster WinSetup main window includes a Workspace which displays tanks, devices, a menu bar at the top of the screen, a status bar at the bottom of the screen and a number of buttons in the toolbar.

### Figure 2-1: The WinSetup Main Window



- E. Minimize
- F. Maximize
- G. Close

The *Workspace* window can be moved anywhere on the *Main* window. It can be docked to either side, to the top, or to the bottom. It can also be left floating in the *Main* window.

#### Figure 2-2: The WinSetup workspace



Right click in the *Workspace* window and choose **Allow Docking** to place the *Workspace* window along the *Main* window side.

#### **Related information**

Introduction

# 2.1 Menus

The menu bar at the top of the screen contains menus such as **File**, **View**, **Service**, **Tools**, and **Help**.

Figure 2-3: WinSetup menu				
👩 Rosemount TankMaster / WinSetup				
<u>File View Service Tools H</u> elp				

Service menu options are also available by clicking the right mouse button. Different options are available depending on the type of object selected in the Workspace window. For example, clicking the right mouse button on the Devices folder will open the following menu:

Figure 2-4: Service menu



Clicking the right mouse button on a device icon brings up a menu with different configuration and service options:



# 2.2 Toolbar

The toolbar provides buttons acting as shortcuts to certain menu options.

Normally the Toolbar is visible. To hide it, open the **View** menu and deselect the **Toolbar** option:



Rosemount TankMaster / WinSe	etup		
<u>File View Service Tools H</u> el	р		
<b> 6 ⊶</b>  C: <b>M</b> © ©  4	1 18   76	% 🖪 ? 🛛 A	_
			В
Network Connections	📋 Rosemo	ount TankMaster / WinSetup	
Tanks	File Viev	V Service Tools Help	
Devices		Toolbar	
Protocols		Status Bar	•
11		Find Object	
		Workspace	
		Refresh Views	
		Switch to workspace Alt+0	
		Alarms	

- A. Toolbar
- B. Hide/Show Toolbar

Items included in the standard toolbar:





- A. Log off to View Only mode
- B. Log on to TankMaster as Operator, Supervisor or Administrator
- C. Rename a tank
- D. Search for a tank or a device in the workspace tree structure
- E. Open the Properties dialog
- F. Open the Tank View window
- G. Install a new tank
- H. Install a new device
- I. Uninstall a tank
- J. Uninstall a device
- K. Turn the Workspace window On or Off
- L. About WinSetup

# 2.3 Status bar

The status bar is located at the bottom of the TankMaster main window. It provides general information about the current system state.

The status bar shows information about a device, tank or any other item that is selected in the WinSetup main window. Connection status, current user, current protection level (View Only, Operator etc.), and operation status are shown as well.

To hide the TankMaster status bar, open the **View** menu and deselect the **Status bar** option:

	🗍 Rosemount TankMaster	WinSetup			×
	<u>File View Service Tools</u>	<u>H</u> elp			
	<b>  ⊖ ⊶   ∁: # ௺</b> @   ĭ	à 눱 😹 ‰ 🖌 🚾 🔋			
	Network Connectio     This Workstation     This Workstation     Torks     Devices     Devices     Devices     GBG	ns			
_	L Logical View Physical Vie				
A — I	For Help, press F1	This Workstation ( Local Server )	supervisor	SUPERVISOR	
		 B	 C	 D	 E
A. Stat B. Con C. Cur D. Cur F. Ind	tus bar inection status rent user rent protection level icator for normal oper	ration			

Figure 2-8: WinSetup Status bar

# 2.4 Workspace - viewing tanks and devices

The workspace displays an overview of all devices and tanks. You can switch between two different views: **Logical** and **Physical** view.



### Figure 2-9: Logical and Physical Views in the WinSetup Workspace

A. Logical view

B. Physical view

In the workspace you can perform various tasks such as:

- Install and configure tanks, devices, and protocols
- Remove tanks and devices
- · Change the configuration of tanks and devices
- View database and input registers
- Setup the tank view layout
- Specify tags for tank and device names
- Upload new application software to a radar tank gauge
- View communication log

# 2.4.1 Workspace examples

The Workspace window shows the installed tanks and devices and available communication protocols. It also provides information about the configuration of installed devices.

# Example 1

In the Logical View all installed tanks and devices, as well as available communication protocols, are organized in separate folders to provide a clear overview of the system. "+"-sign indicates that a device is connected to associated devices.

Rosemour <u>F</u> ile <u>V</u> iew	nt TankMaster / WinSetup 🗔 🔲 💻 🔀 S <u>e</u> rvice <u>T</u> ools <u>H</u> elp				
Network Connections  This Workstation  Tanks  Devices  Devices  Devices  Protocols					
Logical View P Physical View					

# Figure 2-10: Logcial view

# Example 2

The Tanks folder shows an overview of the installed tanks. For each tank the associated devices are displayed. The Workspace provides information that reflects the system configuration.

In this example, the symbols indicate that level gauge LT-1 communicates with This Workstation via Rosemount 2410 Tank Hub HUB-101 and Rosemount 2460 System Hub SYSHUB-201.

# Figure 2-11: Logcial view

📋 Rosemount TankMaster / WinSetup 📼 📼 🔫				
<u>File View Service Tools H</u> elp				
Network Connections				
🖃 🖷 🔜 This Workstation				
🛱 🖓 Tanks				
All Tanks				
Ё 💭 ТК-1				
⊡ 🖾 SYSHUB-201				
E 💭 HUB-101				
ATD-101				
+ Protocols				
Logical View Physical View				
For Help, press F1				

# Example 3

Available communication protocols are displayed in the Protocols folder.

# Figure 2-12: Logcial view

📋 Rosemount TankMaster / WinSetup 📼 📼 💌				
<u>File View Service Tools H</u> elp				
Network Connections				
🖃 🔜 This Workstation				
🛨 💼 Tanks				
🗄 💼 Devices				
Protocols				
📩 🖓 ModbusMaster 1.0				
EnratGPUMaster 1.0				
H ModbusSlave 1.0				
DataHiphwaySlave 1.0				
# 11.1.1.gr.1.1.9.01010110				
L Logical View P Physical View				
For Help, press F1				

# 2.4.2 Icons

In the Workspace window the different tanks and devices are represented by varous icons. **Table 2-1: Device icons** 

Icon	Device
E.	Rosemount 2460 System Hub
<b>(O</b> )	Rosemount 2410 Tank Hub
()	Rosemount 2410 Tank Hub (Simulation Mode)
	Rosemount 5900S Radar Level Gauge (configured)
1	Rosemount 5900S Radar Level Gauge (not configured)
1	Rosemount 5900C Radar Level Gauge. Configured.
<u>چ</u>	Rosemount 5400 Series Radar Transmitter
٠	Rosemount 5300 Series Radar Transmitter
<b>Q</b>	ATD (Auxiliary Tank Device; for example Rosemount 2240S, Rosemount 3051S). Configured.
ę	ATD (Auxiliary Tank Device; for example Rosemount 2240S, Rosemount 3051S). Not configured.
	Emerson Wireless 1410S Gateway
d.	Emerson Wireless 1420 Gateway
	Emerson Wireless 775 THUM Adapter
۲	Rex Radar Tank Gauge (RTG)
FCU	Rosemount 2160/2165/2175 Field Communication Unit (FCU)
	Slave Data Acquisition Unit (SDAU)
4	COM port status
	COM port status for wireless system
Ť	Communication Protocol

# Table 2-1: Device icons (continued)

Icon	Device
Į	Communication Protocol Channel
- <b>H</b>	Communication Channel Modbus TCP
<b></b>	TRL PU
(A1))	IOT 51XX
	MCG32XX
l≡ ≡'1	MDPII
ə	CIU
-	DS4

# Table 2-2: Tank icons

Icon	Tanks
	Fixed Roof, HTG Fixed Roof
8	Floating Roof, HTG Floating Blanket
8	Full Containment
$\mathcal{Q}$	Sphere, LPG Sphere
	Horizontal, LPG Horizontal
	HTG Fixed Roof
8	HTG Floating Roof, HTG Floating Blanket
6	Servo Tank Fixed Roof
2	Servo Tank Floating Roof
Ø	Servo Tank Sphere, Servo Tank Sphere LPG
	Servo Tank Horizontal, Servo Tank Horizontal LPG

# Table 2-2: Tank icons *(continued)*

Icon	Tanks
	Cryogenic Tank

# 2.5 User management

TankMaster provides several protection levels allowing you to prevent unauthorized changes. These protection levels are categorized as User Access Levels and User Access SubLevels.

Each user access level has five User Sub Access Levels providing a large number of unique access levels.

In order to change tank and device configuration, install new tanks and devices, calibrate a level gauge, change holding register values etc. you must be logged on to the appropriate TankMaster user access level.

You can be logged on as **Chief Administrator**, **Administrator**, **Supervisor**, **Operator**, or **View Only** mode. The default username and password for each user type is as follows:

User	Level	Sub Level	Default password
View	VIEW ONLY	*	view
Operator	OPERATOR	*	oper
Supervisor	SUPERVISOR	*	super
Administrator	ADMINISTRATOR	*	admin
ChiefAdmin	ADMINISTRATOR	* * * * *	chief

### Table 2-3: User Access Levels and Sub Levels

### **Related information**

To set required access levels

# 2.5.1 Logging on to TankMaster

# Procedure

1. From the **File** menu choose **Log On** or click the **Log On button** in the WinSetup toolbar.

Logon to TankMaster				
Computer name:	Local Server			
<u>U</u> ser name:	administrator			
Password:	*****			
Enter user name and password to logon to the system.				
ОК	Cancel <u>H</u> elp			

2. Type your **Username** and **Password**. The password is case sensitive but the username is not.

### Note

If logging on fails five consecutive times the user account is disabled. In this case the user account has to be enabled by an administrator.

3. Click the **OK** button. The currently logged on user and the corresponding protection level is displayed in the status bar.

This Workstation ( Local Server )	administrator	ADMINISTRATOR	
	,		,
	I	I	
	٨	D	
	A	D	
A. Username			
B. User access level			

# 2.5.2 Managing user accounts

TankMaster allows you to setup a number of users at different levels and sub levels. You must be logged on as an **Administrator** in order to add new user accounts or to change the existing user account settings.

### Procedure

- 1. Log on as an **Administrator**.
- 2. Go to **Tools**  $\rightarrow$  **Administrative Tools**  $\rightarrow$  **User Manager**.

Jser	Level	Sub Level	Description
iew	VIEW ONLY	×	
perator	OPERATOR	×	
upervisor	SUPERVISOR	×	
dministrator	ADMINISTRATOR	×	
hiefAdmin	ADMINISTRATOR	* * * * *	Chief Administrator

3. In the *User Manager* window, select a cell in an empty row and click the **New** button.

New User			×
<u>U</u> ser name:	Administrator 5		
Description:	Administrator suble	evel 5	
Password:		Level:	
Confirm Password:		<u>Sub Level:</u>	•••••
Account Disabled	ſ		
		ОК	Cancel Help

4. Type a user name and a password. If you like, you may enter a description in the Description field.

5. Choose the desired **User Access Level** and **Sub Level** and click the **OK** button.

User Database sol	urce: Local Server	<b>_</b>	J♥ Use first account with required access level as default.
User	Level	Sub Level	Description
View	VIEW ONLY	×	
Operator	OPERATOR	×	
Supervisor	SUPERVISOR	×	
Administrator	ADMINISTRATOR	×	
ChiefAdmin	ADMINISTRATOR	* * * * *	Chief Administrator
Administrator 5	ADMINISTRATOR	* * * * *	Administrator sublevel 5
4			

A. A new user account is added

*B.* Use first account with required access level as default

- 6. Verify that the new user appears in the *User Manager* window.
- 7. Select the check box Use first account with required access level as default if you want a default user name to appear in the Log On dialog whenever it is opened. If this box is unmarked, the User Name field is empty when the Log On dialog opens.
- 8. Click **OK** to save the changes and close the *User Manager* window.

#### **Related information**

User management

# 2.5.3 Configuring a sub level description

TankMaster allows you to change Sub Level names to something more descriptive than the default settings.

# Procedure

- 1. Go to **Tools**  $\rightarrow$  **Administrative Tools**  $\rightarrow$  **User Manager**.
- 2. In the User Manager window, click the Config Desc button.

Config Access Sub Level De	scription		×
View Sub Levels	Oper Sub Levels	Super Sub Levels	Admin Sub Levels
#1 *	#1	#1	#1
#2 **	#2 **	#2 **	#2 **
#3 ***	#3 ***	#3 ***	#3 ***
#4 ****	#4	#4	#4
#5 *****	#5 ****	#5 ****	# 5 Sublevel 5
		ОК	Cancel Help

- 3. In the *Config Access Sub Levels Description* window, enter new descriptions in the desired fields. In the example above, the description of item number 5 of category Admin Sub Levels is changed from "\*\*\*\*\*" to "Sublevel 5".
- 4. Click **OK** to close the window.

# 2.5.4 To set required access levels

In TankMaster WinSetup, you can set the access level required for the following actions:

- Tank/Device Install and Uninstall
- Tank/Device Configuration
- Replace, Restore and Restart Device
- Protocol Configuration
- Exit WinSetup
- Add Program
- Start Program (in the Tools menu)

For example, if you are logged on as an Operator (\* \* \* \* \*), you are not allowed to exit WinSetup if the required exit level for this action is set to Supervisor (\*) or higher.

### Prerequisites

You have to be logged on as an Administrator (\* \* \* \* \*) to be able to set the required access levels.

### Procedure

1. From the Tools/Administrative Tools menu choose Set Required Access Levels.

🗂 Set Required /	Access Levels				×
- Tank /Deuise Is	eetall and Uninetall		- Add Program		
Access Level:	SUPERVISUR	-	Access Level:	ADMINISTRATOR	
Sub Level:	×	•	Sub Level:	×	-
Tank/Device C	onfiguration		Start Program -		
Access Level:	SUPERVISOR	•	Access Level:	SUPERVISOR	-
Sub Level:	×	•	Sub Level:	×	-
Replace, Resto	ore and Restart device				
Access Level:	SUPERVISOR	•			
Sub Level:	×	•			
Protocol Config	uration				
Access Level:	SUPERVISOR	•			
Sub Level:	×	•			
Exit WinSetup					
Access Level:	SUPERVISOR	-			
Sub Level:	×	•			
	OK	Cance	el Help		

2. Set the required access levels for each type of action and click the **OK** button.

### **Related information**

Customizing the Tools menu in WinSetup

# 2.5.5 To change protection level of separate windows

In TankMaster it is possible to set a Protection Level for a specific window, e.g. the *Properties* window for a device. This function is only available if you are logged on at **Administrator (\* \* \* \* \*)** level.

### Prerequisites

You have to be logged on as an Administrator (\* \* \* \* \*) to be able to change the **Protection Level**.

### Procedure

1. Put the cursor on the icon at the upper left corner and click the left mouse button.

: 🗂	2410 Tank Hub - HUB-	-101		×		
	Protection Level	atabase Device T	ags   Local Display   Advanced Configuration			
	Move					
×	Close	Alt+F4				
		Communication:	Via System Hub SYSHUB-201			
		Communication Channel:	ModbusMaster.1			
		Modbus Address:	101			
		Unit ID:	1087			
		Application Version:	1.85			
		Boot Version:	1.42			
	<u>C</u> hange					
	(Ô)					
		Devic	e is configured and online.			
			OK Cancel Apply	Help		

- 2. Select the **Protection Level...** option.
- 3. Select the desired protection level from the drop down menus and click the **OK** button. Now you will have to be logged on at the specified protection level or higher in order to make any change in this window.

Set Protection Leve	1	×
New Level:	SUPERVISOR	•
New Sub Level:	×	•
	OK Cancel	Help

**Related information** 

Managing user accounts

# 2.5.6 To change password

### Procedure

1. From the **Tools/Administrative Tools** menu choose the Set Password option.

Change User Pass	sword
TankServer:	(All)
User name:	ChiefAdmin
Old <u>P</u> assword	
New P <u>a</u> ssword:	
Confirm Password	d:
ОК	Cancel Help

- 2. Select the Tank Server on which your user account is valid. You can see the different servers in the *WinSetup workspace* window. (If you are logged on, the current server is already selected in the Change User Password window).
- 3. Enter your username if the workspace is in View Only mode. If you are already logged on, your username appears in the Username field.
- 4. Enter the old password and the new password in the corresponding fields.

Note	
The password is case sensitive.	

5. Confirm the new password and click the **OK** button.

# 2.5.7 To change inactivity timeout

TankMaster WinSetup includes the option to set a timeout after which the current user is automatically logged off. The timeout period is reset each time the user performs an activity that requires an access level check, for example changing the configuration of a device or logging on to WinSetup.

### Procedure

1. From the **Tools/Administrative Tools** menu choose the **Set Inactivity Timeout** option (you have to be logged on as Administrator).

Set User Inactivity Timeout				
Inactivity Tim	eout: 10	minutes		
ОК	Cancel	Help		

- 2. Type the desired value in the corresponding input field.
- 3. Click the **OK** button.

# 2.6 New connection

The New Connection window allows you to connect to another TankServer PC on a Local Area Network (LAN).

Before you can connect to another server on the network, a configuration of the DCOM<sup>(1)</sup> settings has to be performed.

### **Related information**

Rosemount TankMaster Software installation Manual

# 2.6.1 Connecting to another server

# Procedure

- 1. Select the *Logical View* in the WinSetup workspace.
- 2. Select the **Network Connections** icon.
- 3. Open the **File** menu or click the right mouse button.
- 4. Choose **New Connection**.
- 5. In the *New Connection* window press the Browse button and choose the computer with the desired Tank Server.
- 6. Type a name in the **Alias** field. This name will be used in the WinSetup workspace for the new server.
- 7. Press the **OK** button.

<sup>(1)</sup> Distributed Component Object Model is a Microsoft<sup>®</sup> technology for communication between software components on computers in a network.

# 3 Basic functions

This section describes functions supported by the Rosemount TankMaster<sup>™</sup> WinSetup configuration tool for installing a Rosemount<sup>™</sup> Tank Gauging system.

The WinSetup configuration program lets you setup communication protocols, preferences for measurement units, inventory parameters, as well as device installation, and tank installation.

In brief, the installation procedure includes the following steps:

- Communication protocol setup
- Preferences
- Installation and configuration of a Rosemount 2460 System Hub
- Installation and configuration of a Rosemount 2410 Tank Hub
- Installation and configuration of field devices
- Installation and configuration of tanks
- Calibration

### **Related information**

Rosemount Tank Gauging System Configuration Manual

# 3.1 Communication protocol setup

The TankMaster work station can be connected to field devices and host computers via **Master** and **Slave** protocols.

**Modbus Master** protocol such as Modbus TCP (Ethernet) and Modbus RTU (TRL2, RS232, RS485) is available as default protocol when the Rosemount TankMaster software is installed on a TankMaster work station. Optional protocols, such as the **Modbus Slave** protocol for communication with host systems such as OPC and Modbus RTU (PLC, SCADA, DCS), can be obtained as well. Please contact Emerson Automations Solutions for more information on various options in Rosemount Tank Gauging systems.

A Modbus protocol offers up to 32 channels. Enraf and HART protocols support 16 channels. For each channel you can specify which PC communication port (USB/COM) to connect to, as well as standard communication parameters such as Baud Rate, Parity, and number of Stop Bits.



# Figure 3-1: Rosemount TankMaster and Rosemount 2460 System Hub

- A. To host computer
- *B.* Slave protocols such as OPC and Modbus RTU for communication with hosts such as PLC, SCADA, and DCS.
- C. HART TCP via Ethernet
- D. Modbus TCP (Ethernet)
- E. Modbus RTU (TRL2, RS232, RS485)



# 3.1.1 Master protocol channel configuration

The Modbus Master protocol channel can be configured for communication between field devices and a TankMaster work station. The procedure applies to other protocols and modems as well, but other parameter settings may be required.

### Procedure

- 1. Open the Protocols folder in the Workspace window.
- 2. Select the icon that corresponds to the particular protocol to be configured (this example shows the Modbus Master protocol).

🗍 Rosemount TankMaster WinSetup	- • ×
<u>File View Service Tools H</u> elp	
<b>▲ ⊶</b> []:#467 @ 18 18   % %   [] ?	
Network Connections     Section     This Workstation     Tanks     Devices     Grad Devices     Protocols	
H-4 ModbusMaster 1.0 -4 EnrafGPUMaster 1.0 -4 IOTMaster 1.0 HartMaster 1.0 -4 ModbusSlave 1.0 HartMaster 1.0 -4 ModbusSlave 1.0 HartMaster 1.0 -4 GBG	Expand All Disable Properties
L Logical View P Physical View	
For Help, press F1	//.

3. Click the right mouse button and select **Properties**, or from the **Service** menu, choose **Protocols** → **Properties**.

-	
Protocol <u>C</u> hannels	
📈 MbMaster.1	Properties
🖉 MbMaster.2	
🖉 MbMaster.3	
🖉 MbMaster.4	
WbMaster.5	
MbMaster.6	Close
WbMaster.7	
🖉 MbMaster.8	Help

- 4. The Protocol Properties window lists the available protocol channels. For each channel the corresponding icon indicates whether the channel is enabled or disabled.
- 5. Select the desired channel.
- 6. Click the **Properties** button to configure the protocol channel.
7. The **Enable Channel** check box lets you activate the protocol channel.

Communication   File Log	
Channel Type © <u>M</u> odbus RTU (Serial)	Modbus <u>T</u> CP (Ethemet)
Modbus RTU Port: COM1 Bed. Port None Advanced	Modbus TCP           IP Address:         10.69.208.12           □ Red. 2460 IP Address:
Retries: 3	

- The *Communication* tab allows you to configure parameters for communication between field devices and a TankMaster work station.
- The *File Log* tab lets you specify what type of information to be logged and saved to disk.

Once enabled, the Modbus Master Channel icon appears in the WinSetup workspace.

💼 Rosemount TankMaster / WinSetup
<u>File View Service Tools H</u> elp
_ <b>□ ⊶</b> []:# <b># 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1</b>
Metwork Connections
E This Workstation
H Innks
Devices
Finite Madbur Matter 1.0
Wbdbdswaster1
EnrafGPUMaster 1.0
IOTMaster 1.0
ModbusSlave 1.0
L Logical View P Physical View
For Help, press F1

**Related information** 

Saving the communication log to file

### 3.1.2 Slave protocol channel configuration

A Slave protocol allows you to collect data from a TankMaster workstation to a host computer.

#### Prerequisites

A **hardware key** must be installed in order to run a slave protocol server. Host communication needs to be enabled.

To configure the Modbus Slave protocol channel:

#### Procedure

- 1. Open the **Protocols** folder in the Workspace window.
- 2. Select the ModbusSlave protocol icon.
- 3. Click the right mouse button and select **Properties**, or from the **Service** menu select **Protocols** → **Properties**.



4. The Protocol Properties window lists enabled and disabled protocol channels.

Protocol <u>C</u> hannels	
📈 MbSlave.1	Properties
🐙 MbSlave.2	
🖉 MbSlave.3	
🐙 MbSlave.4	
MbSlave.5	
🐙 MbSlave.6	Close
MbSlave.7	
MhSlave.8	Help

- 5. Select the desired channel.
- 6. Click the **Properties** button to configure the protocol channel.

7. The **Enable Channel** check box lets you activate the protocol channel.

Modbus Slave Protocol Channel 1 Configuration	×
Communication   File Log   Tank Mapping	
Enable Channel	
Channel Type C Modbus RTU (Serial)	)i
Modbus RTU Port: COM2 Advanced Modbus TCP Port: 502	
Address: 1	
Ba <u>c</u> kup mode: (None)	
OK Cancel Apply	Help

This window has three tabs:

- The *Communication* tab allows you to configure parameters for communication between field devices and a TankMaster work station.
- The *File Log* tab lets you specify what type of information to be logged and saved to disk.
- The *Tank Mapping* tab lets you specify from which tanks to collect data for the host system.

#### Note

If handshaking includes DSR, no query will be sent from the TankMaster Protocol Server if the communication is interrupted. This may result in a Query Timeout.

8. Click the **OK** button to store the current configuration and close the configuration window.e

#### **Related information**

Saving the communication log to file Tank mapping configuration

### Tank mapping configuration

The slave protocol allows you to send data from a Rosemount Tank Gauging system to a host computer.

In the *Tank Mapping* window you can specify from which tanks to collect data for the host system.

#### Procedure

1. In the *Slave Protocol Channel Configuration* window, select the *Tank Mapping* tab.

Communication   File Log Tank Mapping				
Available Tanks:	Mapped Ta	anks:		
🖃 🖳 This Workstation/Local Serve	Pos Tan	k Name	Server	•
ТК-2	0 TK-	1	Local Server	
	1			
	2			
	3			
	4 5			
	6			
	7			
	8			
	9			
	111		, 1 – 1	
	_	+	+	

- 2. From the list of tanks that appear in the **Available Tanks** pane, select the tanks that the host will connect to.
- 3. Click the button to move the selected tanks to the list of Mapped Tanks. Ensure that the tanks appear in the order required by the host system. When the host sends a query, TankMaster responds by sending tank data in the order as the tanks are listed in the **Mapped Tanks** column. You can easily change the position of mapped tanks by using the **and b** buttons.
- 4. Click the **OK** button to save the current configuration and close the window.

## 3.1.3 Log file configuration

The Master Protocol Channel log file can be saved to disk.

#### Procedure

1. Select the protocol channel icon.

MbMaster.1	Find Devices
IOTMaster 1.0	View Log
ModbusSlave 1.0	Statistics State
	Properties

- 2. Click the right mouse button and choose **Properties**, or from the **Service** menu choose **Channels** → **Properties**.
- 3. Select the *File Log* tab.

Modbus Master Protocol Channel 1 Configuration			×
Communication File Log			
File Name		Maximum File <u>S</u> ize:	
ModbusMasterLogCh IIXI		10000 К	B
Multiple Log Files	Log Schedule		
C <u>O</u> ne File	C <u>M</u> anual		
Several Files	Automatic Stop		
Ma <u>x</u> Log Files: 10	Date (Y:M:D)	Time (H:M:S)	
_	Start	Stop	
<u>A</u> dvanced			
	OK Cancel	Apply Help	

4. Type a name of the log file in the File Name field and set the Maximum File Size to limit the amount of disk space required for storing log files. The Maximum File Size option can be used in combination with the Multiple Log Files option in order to store the log files on a number of floppy disks.

If the maximum number of files is reached, TankMaster will replace existing log files.

5. Configure other options as desired and click the **OK** button.

#### **Related information**

Protocol handling

Note

# 3.1.4 Changing the current protocol channel configuration

The channel configuration can be changed at any time.

#### Procedure

1. In the WinSetup Workspace open the **Protocols** folder and the protocol sub folder with the enabled channels.



- 2. Select the channel icon.
- 3. Click the right mouse button and choose **Properties**, or from the **Service** menu choose **Channels** → **Properties**.
- 4. Choose the appropriate tab and change the protocol settings as described in the previous sections.

# 3.1.5 Protocol server configuration

You can specify which protocol servers that will be connected when starting TankMaster WinSetup.

#### Procedure

- 1. In the WinSetup workspace select the **Protocols** folder.
- 2. Click the right mouse button and choose **Configure**.

Configure Protocol Servers	<u> </u>
Server Name	Connect
DataHighwaySlave	
AsciiSlave	
AsciiLTSlave	
Use the settings as default for all network nodes	
OK Cancel	Help

3. In the **Connect** column, select the check box of each protocol to be automatically connected when WinSetup starts up

#### **Disable protocol server**

You may disable a protocol server at any time by using the **Disable** command.

- 1. In the Winsetup workspace, open the **Protocols** folder.
- 2. Click the right mouse button on the desired protocol server icon and choose **Disable**.

# 3.2 Preferences

### 3.2.1 Measurement units

Specify units for inventory calculations and measured variables such as level and temperature

#### **Prerequisites**

#### Note

Make sure that the desired measurement units are specified before installing new tanks and devices.

#### Procedure

- 1. Select the desired server (e.g. "This Workstation") in the WinSetup workspace.
- Click the right mouse button and choose Setup, or from the Service menu choose Servers → Setup.
- 3. In the *Server Preferences* window, select the *Units* tab.

Server Pret	ferences				×
Units A	mbient Air Temper	ature   Inventory	Miscellaneous		
Syster	n Units				
<u>L</u> evel,	/Ullage: m	•	V <u>o</u> lume:	m3	•
<u>I</u> emp:	deg	-	<u>D</u> ensity:	kg/m3	•
<u>P</u> ressi	ure: bar G	•	<u>W</u> eight:	ton(m)	•
C <u>a</u> lorif	ic: MJ/m	3 🔻			
		ОК	Cancel	Apply	Help

- 4. Choose the desired measurement units for level/ullage, temperature, pressure, volume, density, and weight.
- 5. Click the **OK** button to save the current setting and close the window.

#### Note

Note that these settings only affect installation of new tanks. Tanks which are already installed in the WinSetup Workspace will not be affected.

### 3.2.2 Ambient air temperature

- 1. Select the desired server (e.g. "This Workstation") in the WinSetup workspace.
- Click the right mouse button and choose Setup, or from the Service menu choose Servers → Setup.
- 3. In the Server Preferences window select the Ambient Air Temperature tab:

Server Preferences	x
Units Ambient Air Temperature Inventory Miscellaneous	
Ambient Air Temp Source	
Value: C <u>M</u> anual 23.8 °C	
Device:         Source:         Sensor           Image: Auto         ATD-59          Temperature         ▼	
Value Range Minimum: -100.0 °C Maximum: 300.0 °C	
OK Cancel Apply Help	

- 4. Choose **Auto** when there is a temperature sensor available that can be used for Ambient Air Temperature measurements. Otherwise, select the Manual option and type a value for the Ambient Air temperature.
  - Click the button and select the device to which a temperature sensor is connected
  - Select Ambient Air Temperature source associated with the selected device. In a Rosemount Tank Gauging system the associated temperature transmitter has to be configured in the tank database of the Rosemount 2410 Tank Hub.
  - Choose a specific sensor to be used for Ambient Air Temperature.
  - The Value Range defines the minimum and maximum values when Ambient Air Temperature is manually entered.
- 5. Click the **OK** button to save the current setting and close the window.

### 3.2.3 Inventory

Local Gravity and Ambient Air Density calculations are used for automatic density measurements.

#### Procedure

- 1. Select the desired server (e.g. "This Workstation") in the WinSetup workspace.
- 2. Click the right mouse button and choose **Setup**, or from the **Service** menu choose **Servers** → **Setup**.
- 3. In the *Sever Preferences* window select the Inventory tab.

Server Preferences	×
Units Ambient Air Temperature Inventory Miscellar	neous
Local Gravity Calculation	Latitude:
<u>V</u> alue: • <u>Manual</u> 9,8067 m/s	45,0
C <u>C</u> alculated	<u>E</u> levation: <mark>0,0                                   </mark>
Ambient Air Density Calculation	
<u>U</u> nit: kg/m3 ▼	Value Hange Minimum:
Value: C <u>M</u> anual 1,21 kg/m3	0,00 kg/m3
Base <u>D</u> ensity: (• <u>C</u> alculated 1,21 kg/m3	Maximum: 10,00 kg/m3
OK Can	icel <u>A</u> pply Help

4. **Local Gravity** is used for density and weight calculations when an optional pressure transmitter is installed.

Local Gravity Calculation	Option
Manual	Allows you to use a specific value for the Local Gravity.
Calculated	If you want the local gravity to be calculated by TankMaster. In this case you need to enter the Latitude and Elevation of the site.

5. **Ambient Air Density** is used for calculating **Observed Density** and **Weight in Air** (WIA).

Ambient Air Density	Option
Manual	Allows you to use a specific value for the <b>Ambient Air Density</b> .
Calculated	If you want the <b>Ambient Air Density</b> to be calculated by TankMaster. The calculated value is based on the <b>Base Density</b> and the <b>Ambient Air Temperature</b> .

6. Click the **OK** button to save the current settings and close the window.

#### **Related information**

Rosemount TankMaster WinOpi Reference Manual

### 3.2.4 Miscellaneous

The *Server Preferences Miscellaneous* window lets you change parameters such as type of Tank Capacity Table, Reference Temperature, and number of digital alarms.

#### Procedure

- 1. Select the desired server (e.g. "This Workstation") in the WinSetup workspace.
- 2. Click the right mouse button and choose **Setup**, or from the **Service** menu choose **Servers** → **Setup**.
- 3. In the Server Preferences window select the Miscellaneous tab.

Server Preferences	×
Units Ambient Air Temperature Inventory Miscellaneous	
тст	
_ype: Raw ▼ Max points: 1000	
Digital Alams	
Max no of Alarms: 100	
Reference Temperature	
<u>B</u> ef Temp: 15.0 ℃	
OK Cancel Apply	Help

4. Choose the type of **Tank Capacity Table** (TCT) to be used as default setting when installing new tanks. The default TCT type will automatically be chosen when strapping tables are created for new tanks. However, the TCT type can be changed when the strapping table is specified in the *Tank Capacity Setup* window regardless of the settings in the *Server Preferences* window.

You can choose between TCT type Raw, Raw Comp, International, and Northern.

- 5. Specify the maximum number of Digital Alarms that will be used.
- 6. Specify the **Reference Temperature** to be used for inventory calculations. Normally, the standard value 15 °C (59 °F) is used.
- 7. Click the **OK** button to save the current settings and close the window.

#### **Related information**

Rosemount TankMaster WinOpi Reference Manual

## 3.2.5 Setting the name tag prefixes

TankMaster WinSetup allows you to specify default name tag prefixes that will appear automatically when installing new tanks and devices. Note that Tank Tag must begin with a letter. These prefixes can be ignored if you want to use other prefixes instead.

#### **Procedure**

- 1. From the Service menu choose Preferences.
- 2. In the *Preferences* window select the *Tag Prefixes* tab.

Preferences	×
Tag Prefixes E-mail Configuration Setup	Tank View Tanks Visibility
<u>I</u> ank:	ТК-
Level Device: (TRL/2 RTG, Rex RTG)	LT·
T <u>e</u> mperature Device: (DAU)	TT-
ECU:	FCU-
2410 Tank <u>H</u> ub:	HUB-
<u>W</u> ireless (775, GWD):	Wi
ОК	Cancel Apply Help

3. Type the prefixes to be used for tank names and device names. and click the **OK** button.

You can change the prefixes later at any time. Note that this will not affect names of existing tanks and devices.

The following characters should not be used when naming objects in TankMaster as this may cause undesirable results:

#### **Table 3-1: Illegal Characters**

١	Reverse solidus	%	Percent symbol
/ Solidus		<	Less-than symbol
?	Question mark	>	Greater-than symbol
*	Asterisk	{	Left curly bracket
[	Left square bracket	}	Right curly bracket
]	Right square bracket	1	Apostrophe
	Vertical line	"	Quotation mark

# 3.2.6 E-mail configuration

TankMaster WinSetup allows you to setup an e-mail client for alarm notifications and reports.

#### Procedure

- 1. From the Service menu choose Preferences.
- 2. In the *Preferences* window select the *E-mail Configuration* tab.

Preferences	×
Tag Prefixes E-mail Configuration Setup	Tank View Tanks Visibility
Built-in E-mail Client General Configuration	n
SMTP Server:	
Sender Address:	
SMTP Port:	
Authentication Configuration	Channel Security Configuration
Use Authentication	Use Channel Security
Login:	C TLS
Password:	C SSL
ОК	Cancel Apply Help

3. Enter the following information:

Item	Description
SMTP Server	Specify an SMTP server for outgoing messages. Contact your LAN administrator or Internet Service Provider (ISP) for details.
Sender Address	The e-mail account which will send e-mails from the current workstation must be located on the specified SMTP server.
SMTP Port	Optional. Contact your LAN administrator or ISP for details.
Authentication Configuration	Select this option and enter a Login name and Password if authentication is required on the mail server. Contact your LAN administrator or ISP for details.
Channel Security Configuration	Select this option if the e-mail client requires the use of channel security. Contact your LAN administrator or ISP for details.
Subject	Enter a title for an e-mail alarm notification. This subject is only used for Alarm notification and is optional. This subject will not be used for other e-mails sent from the built-in e-mail client.

# 3.2.7 Tank view layout

The *Setup Tank View* tab is used to specify variables to be presented in the *Tank View* window.

TankMaster WinSetup allows you to create a new tank view layout and store it on disk, or load an existing table layout from disk.

- 1. From the Service menu choose Preferences.
- 2. In the *Preferences* window select the *Setup Tank View* tab.

Preferences			×
Tag Prefixes   E-mail Configuration	Setup Tank View	Tanks Visibility	1
Current Tank View Table Layout:		(	
C:\Hosemount\TankMaster\Setu	up\Data\TankInfo.tbl	Load I able	Save <u>A</u> s
Available Parameters:		Selected Parame	ters:
Din 1 Din 2		Level Backup Level	<u>^</u>
D In 3	Move >	Level Rate	
Vap Press		Temp 16	
		Temp 15 Temp 14	
	MO <u>V</u> E AIL77	Temp 13	
	/ Remove	Temp 12 Temp 11	
	< Helliove	Temp 10	
		Temp 8	
	<< Remove All	Temp 7 Temp 6	
		Temp 5	~
Parametero Group:			<u> </u>
r diamotors <u>d</u> roup. [All		UP	Down
ОК	Cancel	Apply	Help

- 3. Click the Load Table button if you wish to edit an existing Table Layout.
- 4. In the *Available Parameters* pane on the left-hand side of the *Preferences/Setup Tank View* window, select the parameter to be presented in the *Tank View* window.
- 5. Click the **Move** button to move it to the *Selected Parameters* pane on the right-hand side of the *Preferences/Setup Tank View* window.
- 6. Repeat for each parameter you wish to include. The **Move All** button allows you to move all variables at once to the **Selected Parameters** list box.

7. Ensure that all parameters to appear in the *Tank View* window are included in the **Selected Parameters** list box as illustrated below:

references	
Tag Prefixes E-m <u>Current Tank View Ta</u> C:\Rosemount\Tankl Avajlable Parameters: Temp 12 Temp 13 Temp 13 Temp 14 Temp 15 Temp 16	ail Configuration Setup Tank View Tanks Visibility ble Layout: Master\Setup\Data\TankInfo.tbl Load Table Save <u>A</u> s Selected Parameters: Selected Parameters: Level Rate Avg Temp PWL Liq Press
Temp 2 Temp 3 Temp 4 Temp 5 Temp 6 Temp 7 Temp 8 Temp 9 Ullage Vap Temp	Move All >> < <u>Remove</u> All < <u>Remove All</u>
Parameters <u>G</u> roup:	All Up Down
	OK Cancel <u>A</u> pply Help

- 8. Click the **Save As** button if you wish to store the current tank view table for future use.
- 9. Click the **OK** button to save the current Tank View settings and close the window.

#### Note

when clicking the **Apply** or the **OK** button, the parameter setup is stored in the table layout that is currently used by the *Tank View* window.

To view the result in *Tank View* with specified parameters, click the right mouse button and choose the **Open Tank View** option:

Rosemount TankMaster / WinSetu     File View Sgrvice Iools Help     G ~   []: (A Color Colo	p 19   76 %   10 %				
- E Network Connections					
This Workstation	Expand All				
🚊 🔄 All Tanks	Uninstall				
<b>⊞() TK-1</b>	Rename				
і	Open Tank View	🗕 🗕 This Wo	kstation/TK-1 - Tank View		
Fixed Roof	Calibrate	Parar	neter Name Value	Units	
🕀 📄 Devices	Tank Entry	Level	9.655	m	
🕀 📄 Protocols		Level Rate	0.00	m/h	
	Hybrid Tank Setup	Avg Temp	23.2	°C	
	Tank Capacity	FWL	0.130	m	
	Tank Volume Calculation	Vap Press	0.255	barG	
	Properties	Liq Press	1.239	barG	
-					
<u> </u>					
Logical View P Physical View		,			
For Help, press F1					

**Related information** Viewing tank data

### 3.2.8 Tank visibility

The *Tanks Visibility* tab lets you configure tanks on a tank server to make them visible on the current TankMaster client.

#### Procedure

1. From the **Service** menu choose **Preferences** and select the **Tanks Visibility** tab:

Preferences	×
Tag Prefixes E-mail Configuration Setup Tank View Tanks Visibility	
Enable Tank Visibility function	
Select tank server: Local Server	
Select tanks to be visible on this workstation:	
X TK-07	
X TK-CIU-00	
K-CIU-01	
X TK-CIU-02	
X TK-CRYO	
X TK-EN	
X TK-FCT	
X TK-FR	
X TK-NS	
When a new tank is installed from this workstation, automatically make it:	
OK Cancel Apply Help	

- 2. Select the **Enable Tank Visibility** function check box.
- 3. From the **Select tank server** drop-down list, select the remote tank server on which the tanks are installed.
- 4. In the *Select tanks to be visible on this workstation* pane, check the tanks you wish to make visible on the current workstation. In the default setting all tanks are visible.
- 5. Choose the **Visible on this workstation** option to make new tanks visible on the current workstation.
- 6. Click the **OK** button to store the current configuration and close the *Preferences* window.

7. Figure 3-3 and Figure 3-4 show result in the WinSetup workspace when tank visiblity is enabled and disabled, respectively:

#### Figure 3-3: Tanks Visiblity Enabled for All Tanks



#### Figure 3-4: One Tank Disabled from Visiblity (TK-X)



# 3.3 Device installation

The WinSetup device installation wizard guides you step-by-step through the installation procedure. See the respective device manuals and the Rosemount System Configuration Manual for comprehensive information on how to install various devices in a Rosemount Tank Gauging system.

#### **Related information**

Rosemount Tank Gauging System Configuration Manual

### 3.3.1 Device installation via devices folder

- 1. Select the **Devices** folder.
- 2. Click the right mouse button and choose **Install New** from the popup menu, or from the **Service** → **Devices** menu choose **Install New**.



### 3.3.2 Device installation via server

- 1. Select the **server** where your system is installed.
- 2. From the File  $\rightarrow$  Install New menu choose Device.



# 3.4 Tank installation

The purpose of the tank installation procedure is to associate various devices to the right tanks. It also includes mapping variables such as Free Water Level and Vapor Pressure to specific instrument outputs.

#### Figure 3-5: Tank and associated devices

Workspace	×
Network Connections	
🕂 🔜 This Workstation	
📋 🖶 📥 Tanks	
🚊 🛁 All Tanks	
📥 📆 ТК-1	
🖻 🗐 SYSHUB-201	
📥 🕼 HUB-101	
👰 ATD-101	
Er Fixed Roof	
Devices	
L Logical View P Physical View	.

#### **Prerequisites**

#### Note

Make sure that measurement units are specified before installing a new tank.

The specified measurement units only affect installation of new tanks. Changing measurement units has no effect on tanks which are already installed in WinSetup. This means that if you want to change measurement units for an installed tank, it has to be uninstalled first, and then installed again after changing the measurement units in the *Server Preferences/Units* window.

Installing a new tank is a simple and straightforward procedure when using the tank installation wizard.

#### Procedure

- 1. In the TankMaster WinSetup workspace, select the **Tanks** folder.
- 2. Click the right mouse button and select **Install New** from the popup menu, or from the **Service** → **Tanks** menu, choose **Install New**.
- 3. Specify desired tank type: Fixed Roof, Floating Roof, Sphere, Horizontal or any other suitable tank type.
- 4. Select which devices to associate with the tank.
- 5. Configure the tank. For inventory calculations you will need to specify source signals for Free Water Level (FWL), Vapor Temperature, Vapor Pressure and Liquid Pressure.
- 6. Specify input for the different tank variables: automatic (measured by a field device) or manual values.

#### **Related information**

Rosemount Tank Gauging System Configuration Manual Measurement units

# 3.5 Level gauge calibration

A minor level gauge adjustment may be needed in order to accurately match measured and actual product levels. For example, a deviation may result from minor errors in tank geometry parameters such as the tank height (R) or the position of the Gauge Reference Point (see the Rosemount 5900S Radar Level Gauge reference manual, for more information on tank geometry).

The Rosemount 5900 can be calibrated by using the **Calibration Distance** parameter. It can be manually adjusted in the **5900 Properties/Geometry** window.

For Still-pipe applications, you may use the **Calibrate** function to automatically calculate an optimized **Correction Factor** and **Calibration Distance** based on measurement data and hand dipping at different product levels.

#### **Procedure**

To access the Calibrate function, select the level gauge icon in the WinSetup workspace, click the right mouse button and choose **Calibrate**, or select **Calibrate** from the **Service/Devices** menu:



#### **Related information**

**Rosemount 5900S Reference Manual** 

# 3.6 Tank capacity

The tank geometry can be defined in a strapping table; the Tank Capacity Table (TCT). The TCT is used to convert a product level to the corresponding volume. Different TCT types can be specified: Raw; International, and Northern.

To open the *Tank Capacity Setup* window:

#### Procedure

- 1. Select the desired tank in the WinSetup workspace window.
- 2. Click the right mouse button and select the **Tank Capacity** option.

Rosemount TankMaster / WinSetup       Eile Yiew Sgrvice Iools Help       □ ••• □       □ ••• □		
Network Connections     This Workstation		
E- Tanks	Expand All	
	Uninstall Rename Open Tank View	
H Fixed Roof	Calibrate	
🕀 📄 Devices	Tank Entry	
+ Protocols	Hybrid Tank Setup	
	Tank Capacity	
	Tank Volume Calculation	
Properties		
L Logical View Physical View		
For Help, press F1		

The *Tank Capacity Setup* window lets you configure the desired type of tank capacity table (strapping table).

Floating roof specific parameters can be configured by selecting the **Roof Setup** button.

🗂 Tank Capacity	Setup - "TK-	1"				
- TCT Table						
Type:	Points:		Point	Level	Volume	
Raw	3	Change	2	10	10000	-
			3	20	25000	-
Units		-	-			-
Level:	m	<u>-</u>				
Volume:	m3 •	•				
Temp:	deg C 💽	-				
Volume						
	0.00	00 m3 👔				
	100000.00	00 m3 👔				
Max:	25000.00	00 m3				
Min:	0.00	<sup>00</sup> m3				
Sump:	0.00	<sup>00</sup> m3				
Shell						
Insulated:	No	-				
Steel Exp:	0.000011	2 /*				
2 * Steel Exp:	0.00002	24 /*				
Base Temp:	20	.0 °C				
- Floating R	oof					
	Roof <u>S</u> etup.			ОК	Cancel <u>A</u>	Apply Help

#### **Related information**

Rosemount TankMaster WinOpi Reference Manual

# 3.7 Tank Entry

The *Tank Entry* window is used for specifying a number of product parameters to be used for inventory calculations. TankMaster can use measured data, or data that is manually entered.

#### Procedure

- 1. In the WinSetup workspace select the tank to configure.
- 2. Click the right mouse button and choose the **Tank Entry** option:

Network Connections     This Workstation     Tanks     Tanks     The Connections     This Workstation     Tanks     The Connections     The C	Expand All Collapse All Uninstall Rename Open Tank View Calibrate
⊞ <b>[_</b> ] Protocols	Tank Entry Hybrid Tank Setup Tank Capacity Tank Volume Calculation Properties
Logical View Physical Vie	w

3. To enter manual values, select the check box and type the desired value in the input field. Manual values are marked yellow.

י 🗊	ank Entry - "TK-1"		- • ×
	✓ Ref Density:	805.00	kg/m3
	TEC Liquid:	0.0007000	
	Strength:	85.0000	
	VCF:	0.99416	
	<u>s</u> &W:	15.0000	%
	FWL:	0.250	m
	FWV at zero level:	0.00000	m3
	Pipeline:	0.000	m3
	Liquid Mass:	WIV - Vapor	Mass
			•
	WIA = WIV " Lable		-
	OK Cance	I <u>A</u> pply	Help

#### **Related information**

Rosemount TankMaster WinOpi Reference Manual

# 4 Device handling

# 4.1 To change device configuration

Once a device is installed and configured, you can modify the current settings at any time by opening the Properties dialog.

- 1. In the Rosemount WinSetup workspace window select the desired device.
- 2. Open the **Devices** folder and select the device icon.
- 3. Click the right mouse button and choose the **Properties** option, or from the **Service** menu choose the **Devices/Properties** option.



4. The device properties window (5900S RLG Properties window in this example) appears with various tabs allowing you to change the current device settings.

5900 RLG Properties - LT-T	FK-1	x
Communication Antenna Ge	cometry   Tank Shape   Environment   Advanced Configuration	
Communication		
Connected to	o HUB: HUB-1, position 1	
Communicatio	ion Channel: ModbusMaster.1	
Modbus Addr	ress: 1	
Unit ID:	51236	
Application V	/ersion: 0.E7	
Boot Version:	0.F0	
	<u>C</u> hange	
	OK Cancel Apply He	lp

Multiple tabs are available for configuration of communication parameters, tank geometry, device specific parameters and advanced configuration options. Some of the tabs refer to the different steps in the device installation wizard. Similar dialogs are available for other device types as well, for example the Rosemount 2410 Tank Hub.

**Related information** 

**Basic functions** 

# 4.2 To uninstall a device

A device can be uninstalled from the WinSetup workspace at any time. The associated tank must be uninstalled first. As an alternative you may keep the tank by disconnecting the device from the associated tank before the device is uninstalled.

### 4.2.1 Uninstall a device and associated tank

#### Procedure

- 1. Start by uninstalling the associated tank (see the Rosemount Tank Gauging System Configuration manual for more information).
- 2. In the WinSetup workspace, select the device, click the right mouse button and choose the **Uninstall** option.



Now the device will be removed from the WinSetup workspace.

### 4.2.2 Uninstall a device without uninstalling the tank

If you prefer to keep the tank, you can disconnect it from the device and then uninstall the device.

#### Procedure

1. In the WinSetup workspace, select the desired tank and click the right mouse button.



2. Choose the **Properties** option and select the **Configuration** tab.

3. In the *Tank Configuration* window, click the **Change** button.

🗂 Tank Configuration - TK-1		×
General Configuration Value Entry	┌─ Source and Unit	1
ATD-TK-1	-Vapor Temperature (none> -Vapor Pressure -Vapor Pressure	
	ATD-TK-1.VP  barG Liquid Pressure	<b>-</b>
	ATD-TK-1.LP   Free Water Level	
	AID-IK-1.FWL	
Advanced	LT-TK-1.LR	
	OK Cancel Apply He	lp

In the right-hand side of the *Select Devices* window, select the device and click the arrow button. Then the device will be removed from the Selected Devices pane to the Available Devices pane on the left-hand side. This means that the device is no longer associated with the tank.

Select Devices		
Please select the devices to use as data sour	ces for your tank:	
Available Devices:	Selected Devices:	
SYSHUB-201	ATD-TK-1 LT-TK-1	
Advanced ✓ Show Only ⊻acant Devices ✓ Show Slave Positions	OK Cancel Help	

- 5. Click the **OK** button.
- 6. Open the **Tanks** folder.

7. Verify that the device (LT-TK-1 in this example) is no longer associated with the tank.



8. Open the **Devices** folder:



- 9. Select the device and click the right mouse button.
- 10. Choose the **Uninstall** option.

Now the device will be removed. However, the tank is still available in the WinSetup workspace.

# 5 Service functions

# 5.1 Safety messages

Instructions and procedures in this section may require special precautions to ensure the safety of the personnel performing the operations. Information that potentially raises safety issues is indicated by a warning symbol ( $\triangle$ ). Refer to the following safety messages before performing an operation preceded by this symbol.

#### **A** WARNING

Failure to follow safe installation and servicing guidelines could result in death or serious injury.

Ensure only qualified personnel perform the installation.

Use the equipment only as specified in this manual. Failure to do so may impair the protection provided by the equipment.

Do not perform any service other than those contained in this manual unless you are qualified.

#### **A** WARNING

#### High voltage that may be present on leads could cause electrical shock.

Avoid contact with the leads and terminals.

Ensure the mains power to the device is off and the lines to any other external power source are disconnected or not powered while wiring the device.

# 5.2 System status

The **System Status Overview** shows status and properties for the overall system, Tank Server, Protocol Servers, and devices.

- 1. Select a workstation in the *Workspace* window.
- 2. Click the right mouse button and choose **System Status Overview**, or from the **Service** menu, choose **Servers** → **System Status Overview**.

Mamo		Descri	ntion	Varaian	Ctatue	Start Time	Current Time
		Descin		F DO Luil 12		2000 0C 17 14 40-21	2000.00.22.15.20.20
lankserver		nusemount i ank naua	II AD	3.60, Dulia 12	UN	2003-06-17 14.43.31	2003-06-22 10.36.23
rotocol Servers-							
Name	Description		Version	Version Status	Start Time	Current Time 🔺	
ModbusMaster	1.0	Rosemount Tank Rada	ır AB	5.B0, build 12	OK	2009-06-17 14:49:32	2009-06-22 15:36:29
Parameter				Status			
System Status	Erro	r (*)					Acknowledge Alarm
Disk	ОK						
Memory	0K						(*) Unacknowledged
CDU	IniBlock						
LPU	IniBl	ock					
LPU Device Status	IniB Dev	ock ice(s) Failure (*)					
CPU Device Status Alarm Block Mo	IniBl Dev No	lock ice(s) Failure (*)					
CPU Device Status Alarm Block Mo Test Mode	IniBl Dev No No	lock ice(s) Failure (*)					
CPU Device Status Alarm Block Mo Test Mode evices	IniB Dev No No	ock ice(s) Failure (*)	· · · · · · ·				
CPO Device Status Alarm Block Mo Test Mode evices Name	IniBI Dev No No	ice(s) Failure (*) Status	Unit ID	Appl Version	Boot Version	HW Serial Number	Operation Time
Device Status Alarm Block Mo Test Mode evices Name	IniBI Dev No No	lock ice(s) Failure (*) Status	Unit ID	Appl Version Device	Boot Version	HW Serial Number	Operation Time
CPU Device Status Alarm Block Mo Test Mode evices Name	IniBl Dev No	ock ice(s) Failure (*) Status N/A	Unit ID 63079	Appl Version Device N/A	Boot Version type: FCU N/A	HW Serial Number	Operation Time
CPU Device Status Alarm Block Mo Test Mode evices Name ECU-201	IniBl Dev No	ock ice(s) Failure (*) Status N/A	Unit ID 63079	Appl Version Device N/A Device to	Boot Version type: FCU N/A ype: R22XX	HW Serial Number	Operation Time
CPU Device Status Alarm Block Mo Test Mode evices Name CU-201	IniBI Dev No	ock ice(s) Failure (*) Status N/A	Unit ID 63079	Appl Version Device N/A Device ty N/A	Boot Version type: FCU N/A type: R22XX N/A	HW Serial Number	Operation Time N/A
CFU Device Status Alarm Block Mo Test Mode evices Name CU-201 ATD-59 ATD-59	IniBl Dev No	ock ice(s) Failure (*) Status N/A N/A N/A	Unit ID 63079 N/A N/A	Appl Version Device N/A Device to N/A N/A	Boot Version type: FCU N/A ppe: R22XX N/A N/A	HW Serial Number	N/A N/A N/A
CrU Device Status Alarm Block Mo Test Mode evices Name CU-201 CU-201 ATD-59 ATD-59	IniBI Dev No	ice(s) Failure (*)  Status  N/A  N/A  N/A	Unit ID 63079 N/A N/A	Appl Version Device N/A Device ty N/A N/A Device ty	Boot Version type: FCU N/A ppe: R22XX N/A N/A N/A ype: R2410	HW Serial Number	N/A N/A N/A
LPU Device Status Alarm Block Md Test Mode evices Name FCU-201 ATD-59 ATD-59 UB-101	IniBI Dev No	lock ice(s) Failure (*) Status N/A N/A N/A	Unit ID 63079 N/A N/A	Appl Version Device N/A Device ts N/A N/A N/A Device ts N/A	Boot Version type: FCU N/A ppe: R22XX N/A N/A ype: R2410 N/A	HW Serial Number	N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A

# 5.3 Customizing the Tools menu in WinSetup

#### Procedure

1. Choose the **Tools**  $\rightarrow$  **Applications** menu option to open the *Customize* window.

Menu <u>Contents</u>		OK
(new tool)		
		Cancel
		Help
J		Add
<u>M</u> enu Text:	(new tool)	
<u>M</u> enu Text: C <u>o</u> mmand:	(new tool)	<u><u> </u></u>
<u>M</u> enu Text: C <u>o</u> mmand: Arauments:	(new tool)	<u>R</u> emove

- 2. Click the **Add** button to add a new menu option to the **Tools** menu.
- 3. In the **Menu Text** field type the text you would like to appear in the **Tools** menu.

#### Example

In this example menu option **WinOpi** is added to the **Tools** menu.

Customize				x		
Menu <u>C</u> ontents			ОК			
WinOpi						
			Cance			
			Help			
I I			Add			
<u>M</u> enu Text:	WinOpi	-				
Command:		Rosemou	unt TankM	aster / \	WinSetup	
Arguments:		File View	Service	Tools	Help	
Initial Disastans		<b>∂</b> ⊶	C: #	A	pplications	?
Initial Directory.				A	dministrative Tools	• 🖿
			etwork Cor	т	ank Echo Viewer	
			This Wo			_
		i i i	- 📄 Tan	V	VinOpi	
		E	📄 📄 Dev	ices		

4. Press the .... button next to the **Command** field.

📋 Select Program	n			×
Look įn:	\mu Орі		• 📸 📷 🕶	
Ca.	Name	Date modified	Туре	Si
Recent Places	퉬 .svn 퉬 Data	2009-06-02 07:57 2009-06-11 14:23	File Folder File Folder	
Desktop	🍌 Shared 📑 BR.exe	2009-06-02 08:05 2009-05-29 15:12	File Folder Application	
Į.	HDV.exe HTV.exe	2009-05-29 15:11 2009-05-29 15:10	Application Application	
TankMaster	StmDensityCalculator.exe	2009-05-29 15:12 2009-05-29 14:57	Application Application	
Computer	() Strioplexe	2009-05-29 15:20	Application	
Network				
	•	III		F
	File name: StmOpi.exe		▼ 0	pen
	Files of type: Programs		▼ Ca	ancel

- 5. Browse to the program file that will be associated with the new Tools menu option as given in the **Menu Text** field.
- 6. Click the **Open** button and return to the *Customize* window.
- 7. In the **Arguments** field, type any argument that you want to add to the command line. This line is usually left blank.
- 8. Click the **OK** button.
- 9. In the **Tools** menu, choose the **new menu** option and verify that the associated application starts as expected.

# 5.4 Viewing input and holding registers

In a Rosemount Tank Gauging system, measurement data is continuously stored in **Input registers** of devices such as the Rosemount 2410 Tank Hub, Rosemount 5900S Radar Level Gauge, and other devices. By viewing the input registers of a device, you can verify that the device is working properly.

**Holding registers** store various device parameters used to control measurement performance.

#### Procedure

1. In the WinSetup Workspace, select the device icon.

	Expand All
	Uninstall
	Save Database to File Upload Database
	View Input Registers View Holding Registers

2. Click the right mouse button, or open the **Service** → **Devices** menu, and choose the **View Input Registers** or **View Holding Registers** option.

T View Input Registers - HUB-101 (Version 1.C4)						
Search for Registers Type Registers	Size:	ow Values in				
Predefined registers   Default	<b>v</b>	Decimal				
Registers Scope		C Hevedecim	a			
Basic	ssic					
Start Register: <u>N</u> umber of Registers:						
[0] Trl2-Level_int	▼ 2	8	/ 6202			
Name	Register	Value	Unit 🔺			
Trl2-Level_int	0	89819				
Trl2-DeviceStatus	2	32832				
Trl2-LevelRate	3	-4				
Trl2-Level	4	8982				
Trl2-Ullage	5	1018				
Trl2-AnalogInput_1	6	0				
Trl2-AnalogInput_2	7	225				
Trl2-HartSlave_1	8	0				
Trl2-Reserved_9	9	0				
Trl2-Reserved_10	10	0	-			
<u>R</u> ead Ck	ose	Help				

- 3. Registers Type:
  - Choose **Predefined** if you would like to see a commonly used selection of database registers.
  - For advanced service the All option allows you to view a specific range of registers. Specify a start value in the Start Register input field, and the total number of registers to be displayed in the Number of Registers field (1-500).

4. The **Registers Scope** drop-down list has three options:

Scope	Description	Access level
Basic	Standard setting that includes the most commonly used registers	View only
Service	Includes a wider range of registers for advanced service and troubleshooting	Supervisor
Developer	For advanced users only	Administrator

- 5. In the *Show Values* in pane, choose the appropriate register format Decimal or Hexadecimal.
- 6. Click the **Read** button to upload the contents of the device database registers.
# 5.5 To edit holding registers

Most Holding registers can be edited simply by typing a new value in the appropriate **Value** input field. Some holding registers (marked grey in the **Value** column) can be edited in a separate window. Then you can choose from a list of options or you can edit separate data bits.

### Procedure

1. In the WinSetup Workspace, select the device icon.



2. Click the right mouse button, or open the **Service** → **Devices** menu, and choose the **View Holding Registers** option.

Search for Registers Type Regist	ters Size:	Sho	w Values in		
Predefined registers   Defa	ult 💌		Decimal		
Registers Scope Basic			C <u>H</u> exadecir	nal	
<u>S</u> tart Register:		<u>N</u> u	umber of Regist	ers:	
[992] swp-Forced_SignallD	•	2	5	/ 25	
Name	Regist	er	Value	Unit	
swp-Forced_SignallD	992		0		
Sip-TankHeight_R	1000	)	10	m	
Sip-OffsetDist_G	1002	2	0.3	m	
Sip-CalibrationDist	1004	Ļ	0	m	
Sip-BottomOffsetDist_C	1006	;	0	m	
Sip-HoldOffDist	1008	}	0.5	m	
Sip-TCL	1010	)	0	m	
Sip-AntennaType	1040	)	5001		
Sip-PipeDiameter	1042	2	0.1	m	
Sin-DineAntennaSize	1078	}	0		-

3. To change the contents of input fields with white background color in the **Value** column, put the cursor in the field and type a new value.

To change input fields with grey background color, double click the field to open a new window for editing. Depending on the type of Holding register, an Expanded Enumerated or an Expanded Bitfield window is opened. Select from the list of options (Expanded Enumerated) or change the appropriate data bit (Expanded Bitfield).

#### Example

Expanded Enumerated.

🗍 View Holding Registers - LT-59	900_2 (V	/ersi	on 1.C1)		×
Search for Registers Type Registers	Size:	Sho	w Values in		
Predefined registers   Default	-		Decimal		
Registers Scope Basic			C <u>H</u> exadecin	nal	
<u>S</u> tart Register:		<u>N</u> u	mber of Regist	ers:	
[992] swp-Forced_SignalID	•	2	5	/ 25	
Name	Regist	er	Value	Unit	
swp-Forced_SignalID	992		0		
Sip-TankHeight_R	1000	)	10	m	
Sip-OffsetDist_G	1002	2	0.3	m	
Sip-CalibrationDist	1004	Ļ	0	m	
Sip-BottomOffsetDist_C	1006	5	0	m	
Sip-HoldOffDist	1008	}	0.5	m	
Sip-TCL	1010	)	0	m	
Sip-AntennaType	1040	)	5001		
Sip-PipeDiameter	1042	2	0.1	m	
Sip-PipeAntennaSize	1078	}	0		•
<u>R</u> ead <u>Apply</u>	CI	ose	+	lelp	

Expanded enum - 1040, Sip-AntennaType	×
Still_Pipe_Array_Fixed Still_Pipe_Array_Fixed Still_Pipe_Array_Fixed Still_Pipe_Array_Fixed Still_Pipe_Array_Fixed Still_Pipe_Array_Fixed Parabolic Hom LPG_LNG_150PSI_Valve LPG_LNG_300PSI_Valve LPG_LNG_300PSI_Valve LPG_LNG_500PSI_VAlve LPG_LNG_500PSI_VALve LPG_LNG_500PSI_VALve LPG_LNG_500PSI_VALve LPG_LNG_500PSI_VALve LPG_LNG_500PSI_VALve LPG_LNG_500PSI_VALve LPG_LNG_500PSI_VALve LPG_LNG_500PSI_VALve LPG_LNG_500PSI_VALve LPG_LNG_500PSI_VALve LPG_LNG_500PSI_VALve LPG_LNG_500PSI_V	

### Example

#### Expanded Bitfield.

TIEUNEN LUIE LIEUNEN	s Size:			
All registers   Default	-		Decimal	
Registers Scope			○ <u>H</u> exadecim	al
tart Register:		<u>N</u> u	mber of Registe	ers:
1000		20	J	
Name	Regis	ter	Value	Unit 🔺
WORD	102	2	0	
ip-TankPresentation	1024	4 [	24596	
WORD	1026	6	0	
WORD	102	3	0	
ip-TankExpansionFac_PPM	103	)	0	ppm
ip-TankCalibAvgTemp	103	2	0	С
WORD	1034	4	0	
WORD	103	6	0	
)WORD	103	3	0	

	Name	Value 🔺
0	Level_above_min_distance_possible	0
1	Predicting_Allowed	0
2	Bottom_echo_always_visible_if_tank_is_e	1
3	Tank_contains_double_bounces	0
4	Slow_Search	1
5	Double_Surface	0
6	Select_Lower_Surface	0
7	N/A	0
8	Show_negative_level_as_zero	0
9	Monotone_level_ullage_Presentation	0
10	Bottom_Projection	0
11	Rhs_Handler	0
12	Invalid_level_is_not_set_if_tank_is_full_or	0
13	Dont_set_invalid_level_when_empty	1
14	Dont_set_invalid_level_when_full	1
15	N/A	0 🔻
OK	Cancel	Help

4. Click the **Apply** button to store the register data, or click the **Close** button to store and close the window.

# 5.6 Viewing diagnostic registers

The *View Diagnostic Registers* window shows a predefined set of diagnostic Input and Holding registers. Each device has a standard set of diagnostic registers which can be changed in the *Configure Diagnostic Registers* window.

#### **Procedure**

1. Select the device icon (for example a Rosemount 2410 or Rosemount 5900) in the *TankMaster WinSetup* workspace.



2. Click the right mouse button and choose View Diagnostic Registers.

View Diagnostic Registers - HUB-	101 (Version	n 1.C4) irted NO	Show in He
Name	Register	Value	Unit 🔺
Status-DeviceStatus	1000	0	
Status-DeviceError	1002	0	
Status-DeviceWarning	1004	0	
DevInfo-HwConfig	1106	4505867	
DevInfo-SwConfig	1108	13	
PrimaryBus-RecMessages	1206	15213529	#
PrimaryBus-MessagesToMe	1208	10035163	#
PrimaryBus-SentMessages	1210	10033748	#
SecondaryBus-RecMessages	1256	1933862	#
SecondaryBus-MessagesToMe	1258	526164	#
SecondaryBus-SentMessages	1260	1881897	#
TankbusInfo-NoOfConnectedDevice	1300	5	#
TankbusInfo-NoOfConfiguredDevice	1301	5	#
TankbusInfo-NoOfOpenDevice	1302	5	#
TankbusInfo-TotalNoOfRWCommands	1304	25724054	#
TankbusInfo-TotalNoOfFfErrors	1306	3	#
TankbusInfo-TotalNoOfTimeOuts	1308	0	#
TankbusInfo-TunnelNoOfReads	1310	2867	#
TankbusInfo-TunnelNoOfReadErrors	1312	0	#
TankbusInfo-TunnelNoOfReadTimeOuts	1314	0	#
TankbusInfo-TunnelNoOfReadBusy	1316	0	#
TankbusInfo-TunnelNo0fWrites	1318	562	#
TankbusInfo-TunnelNoOfWritesErrors	1320	0	# 🔻
Configure Log Setup Pr	int	Close	<u>H</u> elp

Register values in this window are of read only type. They are loaded from the device as the window is opened.

Table cells with grey background color in the **Value** column represent registers of either Bitfield or ENUM type. An expanded *Bitfield/ENUM* window can be opened for these register types. Double-click a cell to open the *Expanded Bitfield/ENUM* window.

Registers of Bitfield and ENUM type can be presented in hexadecimal format by selecting the **Show in Hex** check box.

It is possible to view diagnostic registers for devices of the same type without closing the window and opening it again for a new device. Press New or <pre

The **Configure** button lets you specify a default setting of diagnostic registers.

The **Log Setup** button provides easy access to the *Register Log Scheduling* window, which allows you to setup a log schedule for automatic start and stop of register logging.

The **Print** button lets you print the current register information.

### **Related information**

Configure Logging measurement data

## 5.6.1 Configure

The **Configure** button in the *View Diagnostic Registers* window opens the *Configure Diagnostic Registers* window which allows you to change the default selection of diagnostic registers. You can use this option to setup the *View Diagnostic Registers* window for the selected device type.

Co	nfigure	Diagnostic Registers					×
Regisl	ters Type:	Input Registers		Regist	ers Scope:	Basic	
Group	Prefix:	Trl2 💌					
All Re	gisters:			Selec	ted Registe	ers: 🔳 💻	
Ν	Register	Name 🔺		Ν	Register	Name	
1	0	Trl2-Level_int	1	1	1000	Status-DeviceStatus	
2	2	Trl2-DeviceStatus		2	1002	Status-DeviceError	
3	3	Trl2-LevelRate	- ∍	3	1004	Status-DeviceWarning	
4	4	Trl2-Level	<b>'</b>	4	1106	DevInfo-HwConfig	
5	5	Trl2-Ullage		5	1108	DevInfo-SwConfig	
6	6	Trl2-AnalogInput_1		6	1206	PrimaryBus-RecMessages	
7	7	Trl2-AnalogInput_2	1 <b>a</b> 1	7	1208	PrimaryBus-MessagesToMe	
8	8	Trl2-HartSlave_1		8	1210	PrimaryBus-SentMessages	
9	9	Trl2-Reserved_9		9	1256	SecondaryBus-RecMessages	
10	10	Trl2-Reserved_10		10	1258	SecondaryBus-MessagesToMe	
11	11	Trl2-Temp_14	_	11	1260	SecondaryBus-SentMessages	
12	12	Trl2-Temp_13	·	12	1300	TankbusInfo-NoOfConnectedDevice	-
					OK	Cancel Help	

#### Procedure

- 1. In the **Registers Type** pull down menu, choose **Holding** or **Input** registers. Input Registers are displayed in blue, Holding Registers in black.
- 2. The **Group Prefix** drop down menu lets you filter the list in the left pane.

```
Note
The Group Prefix feature is not supported for all device types.
```

3. A standard selection appears automatically in the *Selected Registers* pane on the right-hand side of the *Configure Diagnostic Registers* window. To add a register to the list, select it in the left pane and press the button.

To remove a register from the right pane, select it and press the 📁 button.

- 4. The order in which registers are displayed in the *View Diagnostic Registers* window can be configured. Select a register in the right pane and press to move it upwards, or to move it downwards in the list.
- 5. Press **OK** to store the current configuration.

## 5.6.2 Restore to default setting

In case you wish to restore the *View Diagnostic Registers* window to the default setup, you need to remove the file that contains the current configuration data for the *View Diagnostic Registers* window.

#### Procedure

1. In Windows Explorer open the following folder:

C:\Rosemount\TankMaster\Setup\Data, where C:\ is the drive letter associated with the hard disk on which TankMaster is installed.

2. Locate the configuration file for the device whose diagnostic register setup you wish to restore:

Device	Configuration file
2410 Tank Hub	R2410_diag.ini
5900S Radar Level Gauge	R5900_diag.ini
2240 Multi-Input Temperature Transmitter and Auxiliary Tank Devices (ATD)	R22XX_diag.ini

- 3. Remove the \*.ini file, or rename it in case you wish to store the file for future use (for example R2410.old).
- Start TankMaster WinSetup and open the *View Diagnostic Registers* window to verify that the *View Diagnostic Registers* window shows the default setting of diagnostic registers.

# 5.7 Logging measurement data

Logging of diagnostic registers can be a useful tool for verifying that a gauge works properly. The logging function can be accessed by using the TankMaster WinSetup program.

- 1. Start the TankMaster WinSetup program.
- 2. Select the device icon in the WinSetup workspace.
- 3. Click the right mouse button and choose Logging.

🗂 Register Lo	og Scheduling - L	T-1	×
Log Sche Manua C M Autom	dule I Mode anual atic Mode utomatic		Sample Rate
Start	Date (Y-M-D) 2009-04-01 2009-04-01	Time (H:M:S) 18:23:28 19:23:28	Max File Size
	Start	Stop	Max Log Files
	<u> </u>	Cancel	Help

- 4. The **Manual** mode lets you start logging at any time. In **Automatic** mode you have to specify a Start and Stop time.
- 5. The resulting log file(s) will not exceed the size specified by the Max File Size parameter.
  - In Automatic mode logging will proceed until the Stop Date and Time is reached.
  - In Manual mode logging will proceed until the Stop button is pressed.
  - Logging will stop automatically when the number of log files is equal to the number given by the Max Log Files parameter.

6. The log file is stored as a plain text file and can be viewed in any word processing program. It is stored in the following folder: C:\Rosemount\Tankmaster\Log, where C is the disk drive where the TankMaster software is installed. The log file contains the same input registers as the View Diagnostic Registers window. You can change which input registers to be included in the log file by configuring the View Diagnostic Registers" on page 65 for more information.

🗖 SEGOT	01-01	729_LT-1_3.lo	g - Notepa	d									
<u>Eile E</u> dit	Format	⊻iew <u>H</u> elp											
======							=======						🔼
Device I	Name:	LT-1											
Device:	5900												-
Started	logging	: 2009-02-05	16:54:48										
Date	Time	IR1002	IR1004	IR1000	IR4002	IR4012	IR5112	IR1420	IRO	IR4	IR54	IR4006	IR2
	05.40	54.50								00504			
2009-02	-05 16	54:58	U	U	U	65536	2392,43	8	1	96521	9652	9652	9,65209
2009-02	-05 16	55:08	U	U	U	05530	2392,7	8	1	96521	9652	9652	9,6521
2009-02	-05 16	55:18	U	U	U	65536	2395,7	8	1	96521	9652	9652	9,65215
2009-02	-05 16	55:28	U	U	U	65536	2392,06	8	1	96522	9652	9652	9,65213
2009-02	-05 16	:56:14	U	U	U	65536	2393,5	8	1	96522	9652	9652	9,6522
2009-02	-05 16	:56:24	0	0	0	65536	2388,86	8	1	96522	9652	9652	9,65217
2009-02	-05 17	:03:29	0	0	0	65536	2390,95	8	1	96521	9652	9652	9,65204
2009-02	-05 17	:07:08	0	0	0	65536	2392,85	8	1	96521	9652	9652	9,65205
2009-02	-05 17	07:18	0	0	0	65536	2392.93	8	1	96521	9652	9652	9.65207
2009-02	-05 17	07:28	0	0	0	65536	2392,92	8	1	96521	9652	9652	9,65207
													×
<													>

### **Related information**

Viewing diagnostic registers

# 5.8 Saving and loading database registers

Input Registers and Holding Registers of the Rosemount 5900 and the Rosemount 2410 can be stored on disk. This can be useful for backup purposes and troubleshooting. Input and Holding registers can be saved for a single device or several devices simultaneously.

# 5.8.1 To save device registers for a single device

- 1. Start the TankMaster WinSetup program.
- 2. In the *TankMaster WinSetup* workspace window, click the right mouse button on the device icon.
- 3. Choose the Save Database to File option, or from the Service menu choose Devices  $\rightarrow$  Save Database to File.

🗊 Save Database to File - LT	-5900 (Version 2.A)
Registers Type Type: Holding Registers	Registers Predefined Registers
All Registers	Last Register:
Folder Name C:\Rosemount\TankMaster\Backup\E	Device backup 2014-12-23
Save	Cancel <u>H</u> elp

- 4. Select **Holding/Input** registers (the Holding Register options is shown in the example above for demonstration).
- 5. Choose the Predefined Registers or the User-Defined option.
  - The Predefined option stores the most frequently used registers.
  - The User-defined option stores a specified range of Holding registers and should only be used for advanced service.
- 6. For the **Predefined Registers** option you may choose the desired **Scope**; **All Registers** or **Basic Registers**. Basic is a limited number of registers mostly related to configuration parameters for the device.
- 7. Optional: The **Save Modified Values Only** check box lets you save only those registers that have been modified. It will be shown if the function is supported for the device type, but may remain disabled if the device version is not supported.
- 8. Click the **Browse** button, select a folder and type a file name.

9. Click the **Save** button to start saving the configuration database to file.

- Registers Tupe	Pagistara
Tupe:	negisters
Helding Desisters	Predefined Registers
Scope:	First Hegister:
All Registers 📃 💌	Last Register:
Save Modified Values Only	
Save Modified Values Only  Folder Name  C:\Rosemount\TankMaster\Backup\	Device backup 2014-12-23 Browse
Save Modified Values Only Folder Name [C:\Rosemount\TankMaster\Backup\	Device backup 2014-12-23 Browse

# 5.8.2 To save device registers for multiple devices

- 1. In the TankMaster WinSetup workspace, select the Devices folder.
- 2. Click the right mouse button and choose the **Save Database of All to Files** option, or from the *Service* menu choose **Devices** → **Save Database of All to Files**.

Save Device Registers		×
Device <u>T</u> ypes	All devices	
Available Devices:		Selected Devices:
ATD-5900_1	<u>A</u> dd >	
- 🗐 HUB-101		
	A <u>d</u> d All >>	
	( Pomouo	
T-5900_2	< Hemove	
SYSHUB-201	<< Re <u>m</u> ove All	
Registers Type		Registers Type
Registers Type:		Predefined Registers
Holding Register		First Resister
Registers Scope:		Flist negister.
All Registers		Last Register:
Folder Name		
C:\Rosemount\TankMaster\Back	kup\Device backup 2014-12	2-16 <u>B</u> rowse
<u>S</u> tart <u>C</u>	lose <u>H</u> el	p Details ≥>

- Select a device from the *Available Devices* pane and click the *Add* button in order to move it to the *Selected Devices* pane. Repeat for all devices you would like to include.
- 4. Select register type: Holding or Input registers.

- 5. Choose the **Predefined Registers** or the **User-Defined** option.
  - The Predefined option stores the most frequently used registers.
  - The **User-defined** option stores a specified range of Holding registers and should only be used for advanced service.
- 6. Click the **Browse** button, select a folder and type a file name.
- 7. Click the **Start** button to save the database backup.

### 5.8.3 To recover a device database

TankMaster WinSetup offers the option to replace the current holding register database with a backup database stored on disk. This can be useful, for example, when recovering configuration data.

- 1. Select the device icon in the WinSetup workspace.
- 2. Click the right mouse button and choose the **Upload Database** option, or from the **Service** menu choose **Devices** → **Upload Database**.

🕞 Upload Database - LT-5900 (Version 2.A)	
File Name File Name C:\Rosemount\TankMaster\Backup\Device backup 2014-12-23\LT-5300_HREG_15-00-52.dnr	trowse
Upload Cancel Help	]

- 3. Type a file path and file name, or click the **Browse** button and choose a backup database file to be uploaded.
- 4. Click the **Upload** button to start uploading the recovery database.

# 5.9 Upgrading device firmware

TankMaster WinSetup supports firmware upgrade for Rosemount Tank Gauging level gauges and temperature transmitters.

#### Note

In case the current program version is significantly older than the new one, it is recommended that you load the default configuration database once the device is reprogrammed. Contact Emerson if you need further advice.

### Procedure

- 1. Make sure the devices are properly prepared for reprogramming (normal operation and no warnings or errors).
- 2. In the *WinSetup Workspace*, select the **Devices** folder. (For a single device, select the device in the Devices folder).
- 3. Click the right mouse button and choose the **Program All** option, or from the **Service** menu, choose **Devices** → **Program All**.

(For a single device, choose the **Program** option, or from the **Service** menu, choose the **Devices**  $\rightarrow$  **Program** option).

Program Devices				
Device Types: All devices				
Available Devices: Program these Devices:				
Move>				
LT-TK-59(≡ <r<u>emove</r<u>				
< TII				
File Name and Program Version     Advanced       ss\RLG_1C1_7\EXE\rlg_appL1C1_7.cry     Browse       Type RLG, Version 1.C1, APPL     3				
Result Successfully Programmed Devices: Device Programming Failed:				
Start Programming Close Help				

4. Select the device to be programmed from the *Available Devices* pane and click the **Move** button. Repeat for each device of the same type to be programmed. Note that if a single device was selected in the *Workspace* window, it will appear automatically in the *Program These Devices* pane.

Use the **Remove** button if you would like to change the list of devices to be programmed.

5. Click the **Browse** button to locate the appropriate software file.

6. Click the **Start Programming** button to open the **Start Device Programming** window.

🗍 Start D	vevice Programming
Statistics	
Device:	LT-5900
Blocks Tot	tal: 4143
Blocks Ser	nt:
Program Ti	ime:
Results:	
Device	Comment
<u>S</u> tart Progr	amming Abort Close Help

7. Click the **Start Programming** button to activate device programming.

### **Related information**

Rosemount 5900S Reference Manual Rosemount 2410 Reference Manual

# 5.10 Tank Scan

The **Tank Scan** window allows you to view tank echoes. Then you may setup the most important parameters to enable separating surface echoes from disturbing echoes and noise.

### Procedure

1. In the *WinSetup* workspace, select the **gauge** icon.



- 2. Click the right mouse button and choose the **Properties** option.
- 3. Select the *Advanced Configuration* tab and click the **Tank Scan** button.

📋 5900 RLG Properties - LT-TK	-1	X
Communication Antenna Geo	metry   Tank Shape   Environment	Advanced Configuration
	Tank Scan	
	Empty Tank Handling	
	Surrace Echo Tracking	
	Filter Setting	
	Safety Alarm	
	OK Cance	I <u>A</u> pply Help



4. The *Tank Scan* window contains the Graph Area, Legend/Options area, File Storage buttons, and various action buttons.

## 5.10.1 Graph area

When the *Tank Scan* window opens, WinSetup reads tank data from the gauge. The process is indicated by a progress bar in the lower right corner of the **Tank Scan** window.



Once the reading process is finished, a tank scan graph is displayed that shows a peak referring to the product surface. The Tank Scan graph may also contain other peaks. In addition to the surface echo, there might be echoes from agitators or other obstacles in the tank.

The Tank Scan function includes tools that allows you to configure the level gauge to distinguish between the surface peak and peaks from disturbing objects. See the following chapters for details.

The Tank Scan graph can be refreshed at any time with the **Reread From Gauge** button. The new echo curve will appear as a black line and the previous curve as a grey line. The graph may show up to two old echo curves. An old echo peak will be marked by a small cross symbol. This can be used to compare the existing tank signal with previous signals.

## 5.10.2 Legend/Options

The following items can be shown in the graph area (check the appropriate box for each Legend/Option to show):

### Tank Echo

The black line shows the latest Tank Echo curve, and the grey lines show previous Tank Echo curves (maximum two).



### **General Threshold**

The **General Amplitude Threshold** is shown in blue. Echoes with an amplitude below the **General Amplitude Threshold** will be filtered out by the level gauge.



### **False Echo Areas**

The False Echo function is used to improve the performance of the gauge when the surface is close to a horizontal surface of a stationary object in the tank. The object causes an echo when it is above the surface. Added False Echo Areas are shown in grey.



### **ATP (Amplitude Threshold Points)**

A weak disturbing echo can be filtered out by creating a curve of **Amplitude Threshold Points**.



### **Holdoff Distance**

The **Holdoff Distance** defines how close to the Gauge Reference Point a level value is accepted. The Holdoff Distance is shown in red.



### **Gauge Ref. Point (Gauge Reference Point)**

The Gauge Reference Point is shown as a dashed (olive colored) line.



### **Zero Reference**

The **Zero Reference** (zero level; dipping datum point) close to the bottom of the tank, is defined by the Tank Reference Height (R). It is shown as a dashed (sand colored) line.



**Tank Bottom** 

The Tank Bottom is shown in red.



### **Echo Peaks**

Echo Peaks are shown in black for the Surface Echo and in green for unknown echoes.



### **Peak Labels**

Peak Labels are shown for the Surface Echo and for unknown echoes.



### **Previous Peaks**

Previous Peaks are shown for the Surface Echo and for unknown echoes.



# 5.10.3 Tank Scan file storage

The *Tank Scan* window supports saving on disk the tank scan data that is displayed in the graph area.

### Procedure

1. In the *Tank Scan* window click the **Save** button.

🔲 Save Tank Scan Data 🛛 💽				
Name to identify tank scan data: LT_5900_TK1				
Comment:	Date: December 2014			
Advanced.	OK Cancel Help			

- 2. Enter a name to identify the tank scan data. You may also type a comment in the Comment field (not required). This can for example be used to describe any special circumstances under which the Tank scan data was obtained.
- 3. Press the **OK** button.

### Note

The default data storage file is named **StrTankScanII.dat**. The file is stored in the following folder: **C:\Rosemount\TankMaster\Lib\Data**.

### Export tank scan data to an external file

Tank scan data can be saved to file for viewing with the **Tank Echo Viewer** (Tools>Tank Echo Viewer).

#### Procedure

- 1. In the *Tank Scan* window click the **Save** button to open the *Save Tank Scan Data* window.
- 2. Enter a name to identify the tank scan data. You may also type a comment to describe any special circumstances when the Tank scan data was obtained.
- 3. Press the **Advanced** button.

📋 Save Tank Scan Data	
Name to identify tank scan data: LT_5900_TK1	
Comment: Date: December 2014	
Advanced OK Cancel Help	

4. Select the **Export tank scan data to external file** check box.

5. Press the **Browse** button.

🗂 Static Text		×
🔽 Export tank scan data to ex	ternal file	
Filename:		
		Browse
		Help

- 6. Browse to a destination folder and type a name in the **File name** input field.
- 7. Press the **Open** button.

📋 Export Tank Se	can Data To				×
Look in:	📔 Tank Master	_Raptor_TankScan	•	🗈 💣 🎟	
Ca.	Name			Date modified	Туре
Recent Places	TankScan_l	LT-1.dat		2009-05-08 12:09	DATI
Desktop					
TankMaster					
Computer					
2					
Network					
	•				۱.
	File <u>n</u> ame:	TankScan_5900_T	K1.dat	•	Open
	Files of type:	Tank Scan Data Fi	es (*.dat)	▼	Cancel

8. Press **Yes** to create the file.



9. Press OK.



10. Press **OK** to export tank scan data to the file.

📋 Save Tank Scan Data
Name to identify tank scan data: LT_5900_TK1
Comment: Date: April 2015
Tank scan data will be exported to an external file           Advanced         OK         Cancel         Help

## To load tank scan data from file

### Procedure

- 1. In the *Tank Scan* window press the **Stored Echoes** button.
- 2. Select the file to be loaded.

Lo	oad Tank Scar	n Data			×
	Stored echoes:	:			
	Name		Saved		
	LT-5900		2015-04-231	6:43:07	
	LT-5900		2015-04-23 1	6:44:22	
	Comment April 24, 2015				
		Delete	Load	Clos	e

3. Press the **Load** button.

### To delete a saved file

### Procedure

1. In the *Tank Scan* window press the **Stored Echoes** button.

2. Select the file you want to delete.

Load Tank Scan Data		x
Stored echoes:		
Name	Saved	
LT-5900 LT-5900	2015-04-23 16:43:07 2015-04-23 16:44:22	
LT-TK1_5900	2015-01-2316:53:52	
LT-TK1_5900	2015-04-23 16:54:05	
Comment		
Delete	Load Close	

3. Press the **Delete** button.

## 5.10.4 Action buttons

The following buttons can be found in the *Tank Scan* window.

Save	Lets you save current tank scan data.
Stored Echoes	Lets you load stored tank scan data that was stored with the Save command.
Reread From Gauge	At any time, you can refresh tank echo and echo peaks with the Reread From Gauge button. The Tank Scan will display the new echo curve as a black line, and up to two previous echo curves in grey color. The previous echo peaks will appear with small crosses.
Print	Opens the print dialogue and prints the Tank Scan window.
Apply	When changing a parameter that affects echo peak detection (e.g. General Amplitude Threshold), you will have to press the Apply button to write these settings to the internal memory of gauge. It takes a few seconds for the gauge to update the echo peak data (up to 30 seconds due to the echo peak filtering function in the gauge). Finally, press the Reread from Gauge button to update the echo peak information in the graph area.
ОК	Applies changes and closes the window.
Cancel	Cancels all changes.
Help	Opens the online help for the current window.

### **Related information**

Tank Scan file storage

# 5.10.5 Tank Scan editing

All the elements having handles can be edited. Each handle may be moved by using the mouse pointer

#### Figure 5-1: Editing the Tank Scan window



A. Handles for moving or right-click editing

### B. Properties window



Clicking the right mouse button on a handle opens a dialog window. The Properties option allows you to review or change parameter values. The following parameters can be edited via moving or right-clicking a handle:

- General Amplitude Threshold
- Amplitude Threshold Point
- False Echo Area
- Hold Off Distance

### To add a False Echo Area or an Amplitude Threshold Point

### Procedure

1. Click the right mouse button in the graph area where you would like to add a **False Echo Area or an Amplitude Threshold Point**:



2. Select a menu item in the popup menu. In the example above, the **New False Echo Area** option was chosen:

erties	×
6.243	m
0.100	m
OK	Cancel
	6.243 0.100 0K

3. Enter the new data and click the **OK** button.

### To delete a False Echo Area or Amplitude Threshold Point

### Procedure

1. Right-click the handle of the **False Echo Area** or **Amplitude Threshold Point** to be deleted:



2. Select the Delete False Echo Area (or Delete Amplitude Threshold Point) option.

# 5.11 Viewing tank data

TankMaster WinSetup offers the option to view data from a single tank or a group of tanks. Various parameters such as Level, Level Rate, and Average Temperature can be displayed. The **Setup Tank View** window lets you specify the desired set of parameters.

### **Related information**

Tank view layout

## 5.11.1 Viewing data for all tanks

#### **Procedure**

**—**...

- 1. In the WinSetup workspace, select the **Tanks** folder.
- 2. Click the right mouse button and choose **Summary Tank View**, or from the **Service** menu choose **Tanks/Summary Tank View**.

Network Connection	5
Tanks     Tanks     Devices     Protocols	Expand All Collapse All
	Install New
	Summary Tank View

3. Select the **All Tanks** tab for a complete list of all tanks, or select a view that includes a bar graph for one tank at a time by selecting the appropriate tab.

I TI	nis Workstatio	n - Tanks View	(All Tanks)			• 🗙			
	Tank Name	Level	Level Rate	Avg Temp	FwL				
1	TK-1	9,655 m	0,00 m/h	20,8 °C	0,250 m				
2	TK-2	10,000 m	0,00 m/h	15,0 °C	0,210 m				
3	TK-3	13,000 m	0,00 m/h	16,7 °C	0,000 m				
I				Paramete Level Level Rate Avg Temp FWL	r Name	Value 9.655 0.00 20.8 0.250		Units m m/h °C m	
					All Tanks	), TK-1 /	ГК-2 )	тк-з /	1.

## 5.11.2 Viewing data for a single tank

### Procedure

1. In the WinSetup workspace, select the desired tank icon.



2. Click the right mouse button and choose the **Open Tank View** option, or from the **Service** menu choose **Tanks/Open Tank View**.

Measurement data for the selected tank is displayed in the *Tank View* window.

Parameter Name	Value	Units	
Level	9.655	m	
Level Rate	0.00	m/h	
Avg Temp	20.8	°C	
FWL	0.250	m	
Vap Press	0.292	barG	
Lig Press	0.392	barG	

# 5.12 Viewing alarm status

TankMaster WinSetup lets you view alarm status for all tanks, a certain tank group, or a single tank.

## 5.12.1 Alarm status for all tanks

### Procedure

1. In the WinSetup workspace, select the TankMaster workstation (or the **Tanks** folder) where the tanks are installed.

📋 Rosemount Tan	nkMaster / WinSetup	
File View Servio	ice <u>T</u> ools <u>H</u> elp	
Fire View Servin	ar   Bar   Ibject   pace   h Views   it to workspace   Alt+0   s     Logical View   Physical View	
View alarm status		VIEW

2. From the **View** menu, choose **Alarms**. The **Alarm Status** window presents a list of alarms for all the tanks connected to the selected TankMaster workstation.

"This Workstation"		
Parameters	Description	Status
Level	High	[0x04]
Level	Low	[0x03]
	"This Workstation" Parameters Level Level	"This Workstation" Parameters Description Level High Level Low

# 5.12.2 Alarm status for a single tank

### Procedure

1. Open the **Tanks** folder and select the desired tank.



2. From the **View** menu choose **Alarms**. The *Alarm Status* window presents the current alarms for the selected tank.

Alarm Status - "TK-1"			- • ×
m l	P	Deservicesian	<b>2 1 1 1</b>
lanks	Parameters	Description	Status
TK-1	Level	High	[0x04]

# 5.13 Protocol handling

## 5.13.1 Logging the channel communication

WinSetup allows you to log communication on the various communication protocol channels. You can log specific devices, as well as filter out certain function codes and error types.

### Procedure

- 1. In the WinSetup workspace, select the protocol channel icon.
- 2. Click the right mouse button and choose the **View Log** option, or from the **Service** menu, choose **Channels/View Log**.



3. Specify a log profile. You can filter out certain function codes and devices as well as error types as shown in Table 5-1.

Realtime Log Settings	X						
Select Function Codes	Select Device Addresses						
O Selected Function Code	C Selected Address						
FC2							
✓ Enable Filtering by Function Codes and Addresses         Number of Messages in Each Update:							
Errors							
✓ <u>T</u> imeOut Errors	CheckSum Errors 🔽 Other Errors						
ОК	Cancel Help						

### Note

This window lets you setup a profile for realtime logging. However, each time the *Realtime Log Settings* window is opened, it is configured as specified in the *Properties/File log* window which lets you setup a profile for saving the log to file.

#### Table 5-1: Realtime log settings

Filter setting	Description
Function Code	A <b>Function Code</b> defines a specific action or type of data. You can log all function codes or a specific code.

Filter setting	Description
Device Address	You can log all devices or a device with a certain address by your own choice.
	<b>Note</b> The device address is automatically copied from the current settings in the <i>File Log Settings</i> window. You can change this address to any other address that you want to log.
Enable Filtering	Mark this check box to enable filtering by function codes and addresses.
Errors	Select the check box for the type of error you like to record: <b>Time-out</b> <b>Errors</b> , <b>Check Sum Errors</b> , or <b>Other Errors</b> . You can select one or more check boxes.
Number of messages	Specify the number of messages that will be added each time the <b><i>Communication Log</i></b> window is updated. If the log is updated too quickly, you may increase the number of messages value to reduce the update speed.

### Table 5-1: Realtime log settings (continued)

### 4. Click the **OK** button to open the *Communication Log* window.

GBG: Mod	busMa	ster, Ch	anr	el 1	1, C	om	mu	nica	atio	n Lo	og									×
18:52:17.000	Q OK	[COM8]	ca	04	00	80	00	06	61	9b										
18:52:17.093	R OK	[COM8]	ca	04	0c	9f	ce	39	4d	00	00	00	00	00	00	00	00	b8	1d	
18:52:16.000	Q OK	[COM8]	ca	04	01	00	00	06	61	8f										
18:52:16.094	R OK	[COM8]	ca	04	0c	e5	4c	40	81	0 a	3d	3f	57	35	3f	40	82	06	1f	
18:52:16.000	Q OK	[COM8]	ca	04	00	00	00	06	60	73										
18:52:16.094	R OK	[COM8]	ca	04	0c	1a	b4	40	be	8e	f3	41	52	e6	32	41	2e	25	73	=
18:52:16.000	Q OK	[COM8]	ca	04	0f	80	00	06	62	8f										
18:52:16.109	R OK	[COM8]	ca	04	0c	04	00	00	00	04	00	04	04	04	00	04	00	1d	68	
18:52:16.000	Q OK	[COM8]	ca	04	5d	c0	00	02	72	20										
18:52:16.078	R OK	[COM8]	ca	04	04	00	80	00	00	00	8a									
18:52:15.000	Q OK	[COM8]	са	04	00	80	00	06	61	9b										
18:52:15.094	R OK	[COM8]	ca	04	0c	aa	2c	39	20	00	00	00	00	00	00	00	00	58	<b>b</b> 8	
18:52:15.000	Ο OK	[COM8]	ca	04	01	00	00	06	61	8f										
18:52:15.078	R OK	[COM8]	ca	04	0c	e5	4b	40	81	0 a	3d	3f	57	35	3f	40	82	1c	6b	
18:52:15.000	Q OK	[COM8]	ca	04	00	00	00	06	60	73										
18:52:15.093	R OK	[COM8]	ca	04	0c	1a	b5	40	be	8e	f3	41	52	e6	32	41	2e	21	8f	
18:52:15.000	Q OK	[COM8]	ca	04	0f	80	00	06	62	8f										
18:52:15.109	R OK	[COM8]	ca	04	0c	04	00	00	00	04	00	04	04	04	00	04	00	1d	68	
18:52:15.000	Q OK	[COM8]	ca	04	5d	<b>c</b> 0	00	02	72	20										
18:52:15.078	R OK	[COM8]	са	04	04	00	80	00	00	00	8a									
18:52:14.000	ð ok	[COM8]	ca	04	00	80	00	06	61	9b										
18:52:14.094	R OK	[COM8]	са	04	0c	aa	2c	39	20	00	00	00	00	00	00	00	00	58	b8	
18:52:14.000	Q OK	[COM8]	ca	04	01	00	00	06	61	8f										
18:52:14.109	R OK	[COM8]	ca	04	0c	e5	4b	40	81	0 a	3d	3f	57	35	3f	40	82	1c	6b	

GBG: Mod	ousMaster, Cha	nnel 1, Con	nmunication Log		×
18:56:48.000 18:56:48.093	Q OK [COM8] c R OK [COM8] c	a 04 01 00 a 04 0c e5	0 00 06 61 8f 5 4c 40 81 0a 3d	3f 57 35 3f 40 82 06 1f	
18:56:48.000 18:56:48.093	Q OK [COM8] c R OK [COM8] c	a 04 00 00 a 04 0c 1a	0 00 06 60 73 a b4 40 be 8e f3	41 52 e6 32 41 2e 25 73	≡
18:56:48.000 18:56:48.094	Q OK [COM8] c R OK [COM8] c	a 04 0f 80 a 04 0c 04	0 00 06 62 8f 4 00 00 00 04 00	Las Catur	
18:56:48.000 18:56:48.078	Q OK [COM8] c R OK [COM8] c	a 04 5d c0 a 04 04 00	0 00 02 72 20 0 08 00 00 00 8a	Log Setup	
18:56:47.000 18:56:47.094	Q OK [COM8] o R OK [COM8] o	a 04 00 80 a 04 0c 7c	0 00 06 61 9b c 74 39 00 00 00	Save As	
18:56:47.000 18:56:47.109	Q OK [COM8] o R OK [COM8] o	a 04 01 00 a 04 0c e5	0 00 06 61 8f 5 54 40 81 0a 3d	Clear	
18:56:47.000 18:56:47.094	Q OK [COM8] c R OK [COM8] c	a 04 00 00 a 04 0c 1a	0 00 06 60 73 a ac 40 be 8e f3	41 52 e6 32 41 2e 5b d3	
18:56:47.000 18:56:47.094	Q OK [COM8] c R OK [COM8] c	a 04 0f 80 a 04 0c 04	0 00 06 62 8f 4 00 00 00 04 00	04 04 04 00 04 00 1d 68	
18:56:46.000 18:56:46.093	Q OK [COM8] c R OK [COM8] c	a 04 5d c0 a 04 04 00	0 00 02 72 20 0 08 00 00 00 8a		
18:56:46.000 18:56:46.094	Q OK [COM8] c R OK [COM8] c	a 04 00 80 a 04 0c 7c	0 00 06 61 9b c 74 39 00 00 00	00 00 00 00 00 00 20 ae	
18:56:46.000 18:56:46.094	Q OK [COM8] c R OK [COM8] c	a 04 01 00 a 04 0c e5	0 00 06 61 8f 5 54 40 81 0a 3d	3f 57 35 3f 40 82 78 bf	
18:56:46.000 18:56:46.109	Q OK [COM8] c R OK [COM8] c	a 04 00 00 a 04 0c 1a	0 00 06 60 73 a ac 40 be 8e f3	41 52 e6 32 41 2e 5b d3	-

5. By clicking the right mouse button in the *Channel Communication Log* window you will get access to a number of useful options:

The **Save As** option lets you save the current log to file.

Choose the **Log Setup** option if you want to change the filtering settings.

GBG: Mod	IbusMaster, Channel 1, Communication Log	
18:56:48.000	Q OK [COM8] ca 04 01 00 00 06 61 8f	
18:56:48 000	O OK [COM8] Ca 04 00 00 00 06 60 73	
18:56:48.093	R OK [COM8] ca 04 0c 1a b4 40 be 8e f3 41 52 e6 32 41 2e 25 73	=
18:56:48.000	0.0K [COM8] ca 04.0f 80.00.06.62.8f	_
18:56:48.094	R OK [COM8] ca 04 0c 04 00 00 04 00	
18:56:48.000	0 0K [C0M8] ca 04 5d c0 00 02 72 20 Log Setup	
18:56:48.078	R OK [COM8] ca 04 04 00 08 00 00 00 8a	
18:56:47.000	Q OK [COM8] ca 04 00 80 00 06 61 9b Save As	
18:56:47.094	R OK [COM8] ca 04 0c 7c 74 39 00 00 00 J Eroozo	
18:56:47.000	Q OK [COM8] ca 04 01 00 00 06 61 8f	
18:56:47.109	R OK [COM8] ca 04 0c e5 54 40 81 0a 3d Clear	
18:56:47.000	Q OK [COM8] ca 04 00 00 00 06 60 73	
18:56:47.094	R OK [COM8] ca 04 0c 1a ac 40 be 8e f3 41 52 e6 32 41 2e 5b d3	
18:56:47.000	Q OK [COM8] ca 04 0f 80 00 06 62 8f	
18:56:47.094	R OK [COM8] ca 04 0c 04 00 00 00 04 00 04 04 04 00 04 00 1d 68	
18:56:46.000	Q OK [COM8] ca 04 5d c0 00 02 72 20	
18:56:46.093	R OK [COM8] ca 04 04 00 08 00 00 00 8a	
18:56:46.000	Q OK [COM8] ca 04 00 80 00 06 61 9b	
18:56:46.094	R OK [COM8] ca 04 0c 7c 74 39 00 00 00 00 00 00 00 00 00 20 ae	
18:56:46.000	Q OK [COM8] ca 04 01 00 00 06 61 8f	
18:56:46.094	R OK [COM8] ca 04 0c e5 54 40 81 0a 3d 3f 57 35 3f 40 82 78 bf	
18:56:46.000	Q OK [COM8] ca 04 00 00 00 06 60 73	- 1
18:56:46.109	R OK [COM8] ca 04 0c 1a ac 40 be 8e f3 41 52 e6 32 41 2e 5b d3	τ.

### **Related information**

Saving the communication log to file

# 5.13.2 Saving the communication log to file

### Procedure

1. Select the protocol channel icon.

⊢ Trotocols ⊢ Trotocols	
MbMaster.1	Find Devices
inal of ownster 1.0	View Log Statistics State
	Properties

2. Click the right mouse button and choose **Properties**, or from the **Service** menu choose **Channels/Properties**.

Modbus Master Protocol Channel 1 Configuration		×
Communication File Log		
File Name		Maximum File <u>S</u> ize:
ModbusMasterLogCh1TXT		10000 КВ
Multiple Log Files	Log Schedule	
C <u>O</u> ne File	C <u>M</u> anual	
Several Files	Automatic Stop	
Ma <u>x</u> Log Files: 10	Date (Y:M:D)	Time (H:M:S)
	Start	Stop
Advanced		
	OK Cancel	Apply Help

- 3. Select the **File Log** tab.
- 4. Type a name of the log file in the **File Name** field and set the **Maximum File Size** to limit the amount of disk space required for storing log files.

The **Maximum File Size** option can be used in combination with the **Multiple Log Files** option in order to store the log files on a number of floppy disks.

The log file will be stored in the following folder:

PC Operating System	Log file folder
MS Windows 7 and higher versions	C:\Rosemount\TankMaster\Log

#### Note

If the maximum number of files is reached, TankMaster will replace existing log files.

5. The **Multiple Log Files** section allows you to optimize file size for storing on floppy disk. Choose the **One File** option if you prefer the log to be stored in a single file.

By choosing the **Several Files** radio button, logging continues by creating new files whenever the size of the current log file reaches the **Maximum File Size** value. When using the **Several Files** option, also set the **Max Log Files** parameter to define the maximum number of log files to be created.

- 6. Set the Log Schedule.
  - Manual Select Manual and click the Start button to start logging. The logging will stop when the Stop button is pressed, or the Maximum File Size is reached.
  - Automatic<br/>StopSet the Date and Time at which you want the logging to stop. Press<br/>the Start button to start the logging. The logging will stop when the<br/>set Date and Time is reached, the Stop button is pressed, or the<br/>Maximum File Size is reached.
- 7. Click the **Advanced** button if you would like to specify filtering options.

File Log Settings	×			
Select Function Codes	Select Device Addresses			
Any Function Code	<ul> <li>Any <u>A</u>ddress</li> </ul>			
C Selected Function Code	C Selected Address			
FC2				
☑ Enable Filtering by Function Codes and Addresses				
Errors				
TimeOut Errors	eckSum Errors 🔽 Other Errors			
ок	Cancel Help			

- 8. To restrict logging to a certain function code and/or a certain device address, select the **Enable Filtering by Function Codes and Addresses** check box.
- 9. Choose the **Selected Function Code** option if you would like to log a specific function.

FC2	Read Inputs
FC3	Read Holding Registers
FC4	Read Input Registers
FC6	Write Single Register
FC8	Diagnostics
FC13	Program
FC14	Poll program complete
FC16	Write Multiple Registers
FC17	Report Slave ID
FC65	Change address

- 10. Choose one of the device address options; **Any Address** or **Selected Address**. Choose **Selected Address** if you want to log communication to a certain device.
- 11. Specify what type of errors to be logged by selecting the appropriate check boxes. You can choose one or more error types to be logged simultaneously.

12. Click the **OK** button.

### Related information

Logging the channel communication

## 5.13.3 Searching for connected devices

### Procedure

- 1. In the WinSetup workspace, open the **Protocols** folder and the appropriate protocol sub folder.
- 2. Select the desired protocol channel.
- 3. Click the right mouse button and choose the **Find Devices** option, or from the **Service** menu choose **Channels/Find Devices**.



- 4. Type the desired values in the **First** and **Last** address input fields in order to restrict the search to a certain range of addresses (maximum range is 1-255).
- 5. Click the **Start** button. Now the fieldbus is scanned for devices within the specified address range.

The search result is a list of name, type, address, unit id and application software version of each device that was found.

🗍 Find I	Devices o	n MbMaster.1	I			×
<u>F</u> irst Addr Found De	ess: 1		Last Address	: 255	Start Stop	
Name	Туре	Address	Unit ID	Version	Redundancy	
N/A	R2410	110	30439	1.H3	N/A	
N/A	R5900	111	2221	1.F0	N/A	
						_
					Close <u>H</u> elp	

### **Related information**

Communication protocol setup

## 5.13.4 Channel statistics

The Protocol Statistics function is a tool which can be used to check the quality of communication between the TankMaster workstation and the connected field devices.

- 1. In the WinSetup workspace, open the **Protocols** folder and the appropriate protocol sub folder.
- 2. Select the desired channel.
- 3. Click the right mouse button and choose the **Statistics** option, or from the **Service** menu choose **Channels** → **Statistics**.



- A. Channel
- B. Protocols folder
- C. Protocols subfolder
- D. Statistics
- 4. The *Channel Statistics* window lets you view a summary of messages and various error types.

Channel Statistics	×
Channel Statistics	
Realtime Messages Received	458
Realtime Messages Sent	458
Realtime Timeout Errors	0
Realtime Checksum Errors	0
Realtime Undefined Errors	0
Realtime Exception Counter	286
<	4
	elp
# 5.14 TankMaster Administrator

The **TankMaster Administrator** program lets you select which TankMaster programs that will start automatically when the PC is turned on. It also allows you to check which TankMaster processes that are currently running.

By using the backup option, copies of the current WinOpi, WinSetup and Tank Server configurations can be stored. In the event of a PC operating system crash, resulting in corrupt TankMaster files, these backup files can be used to restore the TankMaster settings and the registry of the Windows operating system.

To open the **TankMaster Administrator**, click the icon on the right-hand side of the MS Windows taskbar:

Figure 5-2: TankMaster Administrator icon in the Windows taskbar.



### 5.14.1

The **Log on** function allows you to make changes in the **TankMaster Administrator** window.

#### Procedure

Log on

1. Open the *TankMaster Administrator* window by clicking the *Administrator* icon on the right-hand side of the MS Windows Taskbar.

#### 2. Select the **Log on** button.

Rosemount TankMaster / Administrator Program on 1HFQVL3						
TankMaster Applic	ations	Redundancy	Status			
Tank Server	Tank Server - [RUNNING] Redundancy Stat					
Modbus Slave Pr	otocol Server		Status			
Data Highway Pl	us Slave Protocol Sen	uor.	Status			
	tocal Saniar	vei	Status			
Modbus ECT Slave Fro	vo Protocol Sonior		Status			
MinSatur	ve Frotocor Server					
l♥ winsetup						
1 winopi						
Event log:	Channed TM Mardhursch	au a Dana ta an l				
2023-10-06 14:51:16 0 2023-10-06 14:51:19 Ir	r - Stopped TM/Modbussi fo - Stop TankMaster	averrotocol	^			
2023-10-06 14:51:19 O 2023-10-06 14:51:19 Ir	K - Stopped TM/TankServ Ifo - Stop TankMaster dor	er Ie				
2023-10-06 14:51:33 Ir 2023-10-06 14:51:45 O	fo - Detected TankServer K - Started TM/StmSetUp	r changed state to termina .exe	ted			
2023-10-06 14:51:52 Ir 2023-10-06 14:52:23 O	fo - Detected TankServer K - Started TM/TankServe	r changed state to running er				
2023-10-06 14:52:28 O	K - Started TM/ModbusSla K - Started TM/ModbusEC	aveProtocol TSlaveProtocol				
<						
Processes	Stop TM	Restart TM	Backup/Restore			
Log on	Log on Log off Close					
Fewer Options <<						
Auto Start Config Fail Over Servers File Details Process Affinity						
Change Password Debug Report CT Checksum						

3. Enter the password and select **OK**.

#### Note

The default password is **admin**.

Logon to Adminis	trator Program	×
Password:		
	ОК	Cancel

# 5.14.2 Changing the Administrator program password

#### Procedure

- 1. Open the *TankMaster Administrator* window by clicking the *Administrator* icon on the right-hand side of the MS Windows taskbar.
- 2. Log on to TankMaster Administrator.

#### 3. Click the **Change Password** button.

🙀 Rosemount TankMaster / Administrator Program on 1HFQVL3						
TankMaster Applica	ations					
Tank Server	[RUNNING]	Redundancy	Status			
Batch Server			Status			
Modbus Slave Pr	otocol Server		Status			
🗖 Data Highway Plu	us Slave Protocol Sen	/er	Status			
AsciiLT Slave Pro	tocol Server		Status			
Modbus FCT Slav	ve Protocol Server		Status			
✓ WinSetup						
🖂 WinOpi						
Event log:						
2023-10-06 14:51:16 OK - Stopped TM/ModbusSlaveProtocol 2023-10-06 14:51:19 Info - Stop TankMaster 2023-10-06 14:51:19 Info - Stop TankMaster done 2023-10-06 14:51:19 Info - Stop TankMaster done 2023-10-06 14:51:13 Info - Detected TankServer changed state to terminated 2023-10-06 14:51:52 Info - Detected TankServer changed state to running 2023-10-06 14:51:52 Info - Detected TankServer changed state to running 2023-10-06 14:52:28 OK - Started TM/MadbusSlaveProtocol 2023-10-						
< >>						
Processes Stop TM Restart TM Backup/Restore						
Log on Log off Close						
Fewer Options <<						
Auto Start Config	Fail Over Servers	File Details	Process Affinity			
Change Password Debug Report CT Checksum						

4. Enter the old and new passwords. Confirm the new password and select **OK**.

Change Password	
Old Password	•••••
New Password	•••••
Confirm New Password	•••••
	OK Cancel

## 5.14.3 Autostart

The **Autostart** function lets you specify programs to start automatically when the TankMaster computer is started.

#### Procedure

- 1. Open the *TankMaster Administrator* window by clicking the *Administrator* icon on the right-hand side of the MS Windows taskbar.
- 2. Select the Auto Start Config button to open the Auto Start Configuration window.

3. Select check boxes for the programs you want to start automatically. Then select the **OK** button.

Auto Start Configuration				
Automatically start processes at startup: VinOpi VinSetup Tank Server Batch Server Modbus Slave Protocol Server Data Highway Plus Slave Protocol Server				
AsciiLT Slave Protocol Server				
Modbus FCT Slave Protocol Server Start other program At start up, start this program Delay Shortcut drop zone				
5 seconds OK Cancel				

4. The **Autostart** function will be activated next time the TankMaster PC is started.

## 5.14.4 Backup

The **Backup** function can be used to save configuration data for devices and tanks as well as workspace settings for WinSetup and WinOpi.

#### Procedure

1. Open the *TankMaster Administrator* window by clicking the *Administrator* icon on the right-hand side of the MS Windows Taskbar.

2. Select the **Backup/Restore** button.

The *Backup* window contains the following:

- Information on when the Last Backup and Last Auto Backup were performed
- Backup data files to create
- File path to destination folder for the backup files
- Auto Backup settings

Backup X
Last Backup:
Last Auto Backup:
Backup data files
TankServer & Protocol Servers
✓ BatchServer
✓ Historical Data
VinOpi
✓ WinSetup
✓ Registry keys for TankMaster
✓ Proof Test Reports
Destination C:\Rosemount\TankMaster\Backup
Approx. start 00:00:00 $\stackrel{\bullet}{\longrightarrow}$ Interval: 1 $\stackrel{\bullet}{}$ (days)
Backup Now Restore Save Configuration Close

- 3. Select which backup data files to create in the *Backup data files* pane.
  - The **TankServer** option lets you backup tank and device configurations (the Tank server must be running).
  - The **Batch Server** option lets you backup the batch database files (the Batch server must be running). Note that the Batch server automatically removes a batch from the database after a certain number of days, see the TankMaster Batch Handling Reference Manual for more information.
  - The **Historical Data** option lets you backup any previously created Historical Data, see the WinOpi User's Guide for more information.
  - The **WinOpi** and **WinSetup** options allows you to save the workspace configuration such as groups, colors, network settings etc.
  - The Registry keys for TankMaster option lets you save the TankMaster settings of the MS Windows registry.
- 4. In the *Backup* window, select the desired destination folder by pressing the **Browse** button.

5. In the *Browse For Folder* window, select the desired file destination. TankMaster automatically creates subdirectories for WinOpi, WinSetup, and Tankserver files.

Browse For Folder				
Locate the folder you want to use as backup destination, or create a new folder.				
▶       TechInfo         ▶       TM_BAK         ▶       TMAR         ▶       WINDOWS         ▶       PC(\\SEGT01-F549) (N:)         ▶       BServ (\\SEGT01-F549) (O:)         ▶       SRManagement (\\SEGT01-F549) (P:)         ▶       WinApplic (\\SEGT01-F549) (W:)         ▶       SRProjects (\\SEGT01-F549) (W:)         ▶       Retwork         ♥       Advanced Control Panel				
TM_BAK				
Make New Folder OK Cancel				

6. Select the **OK** button to close the *Browse for Folder* window and return to the *Backup* window.

Backup >	<
Last Backup:	
Last Auto Backup:	
Backup data files	
TankServer & Protocol Servers	
✓ BatchServer	
🔽 Historical Data	
VinOpi	
VinSetup	
Registry keys for TankMaster	
✓ Proof Test Reports	
Destination C:\Rosemount\TankMaster\Backup	
Auto Backup	
Enable	
Approx. start 00:00:00 ÷ Interval: 1 · (days)	
Backup Now Restore Save Configuration Close	1

- 7. In the **Auto Backup** pane, select the **Enable** check box to enable automatic backup. Also set **Start time** and **Interval** (1-30 days). This will automatically backup the selected backup data files at the specified start time and interval.
- 8. Select the **Save Configuration** button to save the current **Backup** window settings.
- 9. Select the **Backup Now** button if you like to make a manual backup of the selected items in the **Backup data files** pane.

10. Select the **Close** button.

### 5.14.5 Restore

If the PC operating system has crashed resulting in corrupt TankMaster files, the TankMaster settings can be restored by using backup files. The **Restore Backup Wizard** lets you restore tank and device configuration, BatchServer data, and Historical data. You may also restore WinOpi and WinSetup configurations such as groups, color, network settings etc.

#### Procedure

- Check that WinSetup and WinOpi are closed. You may click the **Processes** button in the TM Administrator program to check if any TankMaster programs are running. Note that the TankMaster Administrator program itself also appears in the **Processes** window. You may also open the **Windows Task Manager** to make sure that TankMaster servers, such as **TankServer.exe**, are closed.
- 2. Open the TankMaster Administrator window.
- 3. Select the **Backup/Restore** button. The **Backup** window appears.

Backup	×		
Last Backup:			
Last Auto Backup:			
Backup data files			
TankServer & Protocol Servers			
✓ BatchServer			
J ✓ Historical Data			
₩inOpi			
VinSetup			
✓ Registry keys for TankMaster			
I Proof Test Reports			
Destination C: Rosemount\TankMaster\Backup Auto Backup Enable Approx. start 00:00:00 + Interval: 1 + (days)			
Backup Now Restore Save Configuration Close			

- 4. In the *Backup* window, click the **Restore** button to start the **Restore Backup Wizard**.
- 5. Click the **Next** button and follow the instructions. You will be guided through a step-by-step instruction that lets you specify a folder to store backup files and data to be restored. You may also create a backup of the current configuration.

Restore Backup Wizard			
and dimension of the state of the	Welcome to the Restore Backup Wizard!		
Comments of the second	This wizard will guide you through the process of restoring a TankMaster configuration from backup.		
	The restore backup process consists of the following steps:		
	1. Specify the folder that contains the backup files.		
	2. Choose which configuration files to restore.		
	3. Specify restore options.		
TM Restore Backup Wizard	4. Restore the backup (copy files).		
	Press the "Next" button to continue.		
	<back next=""> Cancel</back>		

#### Note

The additional option **Create a backup of the current configuration** should not be used if the restore function is used to replace corrupt configuration files.

#### Note

The additional option **Delete old configuration files** clears all configuration files which are not replaced by the Restore function. If this option will be used, it may be a good idea to backup the current configuration files first, in case you need to recover the current TankMaster configuration at a later point of time.

#### **Related information**

Processes

## 5.14.6 File version information

The **File Details** option allows you to view a list of all the files included in the TankMaster software package. The list presents file versions and brief descriptions.

#### Figure 5-3: List of files in TankMaster package

File Version Info					×
Installation C:\Rose	mount\TankMaster\				
File name	Last modification	Version	Description	Comment	Hash 🔺
DbUpgrade.exe	2023-05-02 17:15:28	6,6,1,29	TankMaster/Database Upgrade Program	Version 6.G1 Build 29	398A216659D1E7B5
BatchDbAccess.dll	2023-05-02 17:11:14	6,6,0,1	TankMaster / Batch Database Access L	Version 6.G1 Build 29	EE59FDFD6F7310CC
BatchExport.dll	2023-05-02 17:11:18	6,6,0,1	TankMaster / Batch Server Export Comp	Version 6.G1 Build 29	07510DF278522D13I
BatchReport.dll	2023-05-02 17:11:20	6,6,0,1	TankMaster / Batch Server Report Gen	Version 6.G1 Build 29	4B4D8DAAB9E41BB
Blat.dll	2023-05-02 17:11:50	0,0,0,0	N/A	N/A	1BA700B1D1874D14
BPAClient.dll	2022-03-27 18:58:00	9,0,3042,0	N/A	N/A	269718624DE4D8B6
C4dll.dll	2022-03-27 18:58:00	0,0,0,0	N/A	N/A	5F8F192070FF09701
ciu.dll	2023-05-02 17:14:24	6,6,1,29	TankMaster/CIU DLL	Version 6.G1 Build 29	A02AA6457B0C9091
CRUFLras.dll	2022-04-01 10:31:50	1,0,0,0	N/A	N/A	AF6105012AB96F994
dbghelp.dll	2022-04-01 10:31:50	6,10,3,233	Windows Image Helper	N/A	CBC2285624088F24
DComPerm.exe	2022-04-01 10:31:50	0,0,0,0	N/A	N/A	AE43B51F5C5795EB
DS4.dll	2023-05-02 17:14:28	6,6,1,29	TankMaster/DS4 DLL	Version 6.G1 Build 29	1DBE059C54AFD25E
edtEDnt.dll	2023-05-02 17:08:22	0,0,0,0	N/A	N/A	F59FBF54EF14F8AA!
EH8X.dll	2023-05-02 17:15:22	6,6,1,29	TankMaster/EH8X DLL	Version 6.G1 Build 29	0793051751880192E
	2022 05 02 17-14-10	00100		Mornion C C1 Duild 29	
			Verify hash	Save to File	resh Close

#### Saving the list of files

The list can be stored by using the **Save to File** button. The file is stored in text format which can be opened by any word processing program.

#### Figure 5-4: List of TankMaster files stored in text file

FileVersionInfo.txt - Notepad	
<u>File E</u> dit F <u>o</u> rmat <u>V</u> iew <u>H</u> elp	
[R22XX.dll] Date=2014-10-10 09:51:12 Version=6,1,6,19 Description=TankMaster/R22XX DLL Comment=Version 6.B6 Build 19	•
[R2410.d]] Date=2014-10-10 09:51:04 Version=6,1,6,19 Description=TankMaster/R2410 DLL Comment=Version 6.B6 Build 19	H
[R2460.d]] Date=2014-10-10 09:51:28 Version=6,1,6,19 Description=TankMaster/R2460 DLL Comment=Version 6.B6 Build 19	
[r53.dll] Date=2014-10-10 09:47:44 Version=6,1,6,19 Description=TankMaster/R53 DLL	-
< III	±. ◄

#### Note

When entering the filename in the Save to File dialogue, also enter file type **txt**, e.g. enter File\_Version.**txt**.

#### Verify hash

The **Verify hash** button lets you check the integrity of the TankMaster files.

File name	Comment	Hash	<b></b>
DbUpgrade.exe	Version 6.G1 Build 29	398A216659D1E7B59948A6E288FAF1A7DA98252D825FC276FB7A9172466AABFE	
BatchDbAccess.dll	Version 6.G1 Build 29	EE59FDFD6F7310C0DB78B8B671CC02F2F2FDDF73C9E691E51BB86296C829AAE1	
BatchExport.dll	Version 6.G1 Build 29	07510DF278522D13DA997E70025EF25334E65ED614B8FE19C3B4F1C91146B978	_
BatchReport.dll	Version 6.G1 Build 29	4B4D8DAAB9E41BB70C3E893B7DF05D402E8DD1FFFFC9228228A668081786607D	
Blat.dll	N/A	1BA700B1D1874D14FDA7BB0FC55E3A277B0AB71C592EE6FDCB88157C3A066CEB	
BPAClient.dll	N/A	269718624DE4D8B668E064FE4BDF382201B0A9C5AA67BDEE365F36BD26926016	
C4dll.dll	N/A	5F8F192070FF09701B27AABC1749D0EFE148F6B4D3EF0DFB9EF71BFEA1CD9F08	
ciu.dll	Version 6.G1 Build 29	A02AA6457B0C909175D1F91CCC1F25EFC821A7E33231A03105ADCE4BBF8F11FE	
CRUFLras.dll	N/A	AF6105012AB96F99A970693778905D764DC90BD09F5181FFE83B2963DCB00630	
dbghelp.dll	N/A	CBC2285624088F24550BAC9E5C56624CA72F1C3CBA3BD51E55F50AAFA409581C	
DComPerm.exe	N/A	AE43B51F5C5795EBA6FFFBCF901CED7215B86342451AA4EF39B4F2D8F649FA81	
DS4.dll	Version 6.G1 Build 29	1DBE059C54AFD25DD53E6EDB041EC49514CF2CE8ED1D5DFDD6F10BDAA9A484F1	
edtEDnt.dll	N/A	F59FBF54EF14F8AA507CD60BEB7D16688327EC7A30DFF1D82E1405C8DBF5910B	
EH8X.dll	Version 6.G1 Build 29	0793051751880192E7F605379C939EBD9996011BCB1A4513A60B2F6FC2717649	
EHMDPII.dll	Version 6.G1 Build 29	087D94C03F0025DD01EEB3E22D84AE591C07BEDA4AC4191AF7C191470E018459	
Enable40.dll	N/A	C2F7B32A170655DD20E622A105F9E3EF6406AA409EB2CF0F5A163D485053B52B	
ENRAF.dll	Version 6.G1 Build 29	DB0BEC21C67183254FC05EC2FAA106DCDF94A5C1BEB19403665DDBD9F9DF953E	
Equilibrium_DLL.dll	N/A	6F685C7E83ED3DB64DDFF1B4A57B5991D92BCC29C8031B34ADFAE06DC904385A	-
4			

#### Figure 5-5: Example of hash verification

### 5.14.7 Processes

To view the running TankMaster programs, click the **Processes** button in the TankMaster Administrator window:

#### Figure 5-6: List of running TankMaster processes

Running TankMaster Processes
enrafgpumaster.exe hartmaster.exe iotmaster.exe modbusmaster.exe modbusslave.exe stmadministrator.exe stmsetup.exe tankserver.exe
Also shutdown administrator
Shutdown TM Shutdown and Staydown Close

The **Shutdown TM** button lets you close all TankMaster programs except the TankMaster Administrator. In case a TankMaster client requests data, the TankServer starts up again.

By using the **Shutdown TM and Staydown** button, the TankServer stays down regardless of any requests.

If the **Also shutdown administrator** check box is selected, the TMAdministrator program is shut down as well.

Click the **Update** button to update the contents of the **Processes** window.

# 5.15 Proof test

TankMaster WinSetup has built-in functionality to support proof testing of high level alarms. You may combine continuous product level monitoring with proof testing at regular intervals. A step by step proof test guide helps you through selected tests, and summarizes the result in a test report.

Full high level alarm proof tests using a reference reflector as well as partial proof test such as analog output/relay output is supported. Depending on tank gauging system different options are available.



Figure 5-7: Proof Test Menu option in WinSetup

Depending on the particular model code option that is ordered, the *Proof Test* window may look different as shown in Figure 5-8.

#### Figure 5-8: Proof Test windows

🗊 Proof Test - LT-TK-1	×	Proof Test - LT-TK-1	×
Select F	SIL High Alarm Test (SIS)		
High Level Alarm Verification Tests	Rosemount 5900 Level Verification Test	Test	
Simulated Reference Reflector	Rosemount 2410 Output Verification Tests	History	
	Analog Output Relays K1/K2	Scheduling	
Start Guided Proof Test	Include customized checklist questions	Close Help	
More Options			
Reference Reflector Configuration	Proof Test History		
Simulated Reference Reflector Configuration	Proof Test Scheduling		
	Customize Checklist Questions		
	Close Help		

## 5.15.1 Proof test functions

The *Proof Test* window lets you perform a number of different tests:

- high level alarm verification using a reference reflector
- high level alarm verification with simulated reference reflector
- One-point level verification by hand dipping to verify automatic level measurements
- analog output verification
- relay output verification

Multiple tests can be performed in a sequence by selecting serveral check boxes in the Proof Test window. You may for example do a High Level Alarm test with a reference reflector, followed by a test of the analog outputs of a connected tank hub.

#### **Related information**

Rosemount 5900 and 2410 Safety Manual SIL 2 Rosemount 5900 Proof Test Reference Manual

00809-0100-5110 Rev. AC 2023

For more information: Emerson.com/global

 $^{\odot}\text{2023}$  Emerson. All rights reserved.

Emerson Terms and Conditions of Sale are available upon request. The Emerson logo is a trademark and service mark of Emerson Electric Co. Rosemount is a mark of one of the Emerson family of companies. All other marks are the property of their respective owners.



ROSEMOUNT